
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 


 


MINUTES* 
 


 (*In order discussed) 
 
 


Board of Directors Meeting  
April 6, 2017 
6:30 p.m. 
 
 
Board Members Present: Tim Lipinski 
 Rich Holmer 
 Gaylord Schaap 
 Sukey Robb-Wilder 
   
Board Members Absent: Pip Marquez de la Plata 
 
  
Staff in Attendance: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 Julie Kenny, Secretary to the Board 
  
Others in Attendance:     Robin Donoghue, Legal Counsel 


 
 


I. CALL TO ORDER 
 


The properly agendized meeting was called to Order by President Robb-Wilder at 6:30 p.m.   
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 
p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.) 
 
Director Robb-Wilder reviewed the items on the Consent Calendar.  Director Holmer moved to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.  The following 
items were approved:  
 


A. Approval of the Minutes of the March 2, 2017 Regular Meeting and the March 6, 
2017 Special Board Meeting.  


 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payment. 
 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence: (None.) 
 
 


 1







IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.) 
None. 
 
 


V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)* 
     *in the order discussed 
 
V-A. (6:32 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Approval of Res. 17-05, Designation of 


Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies.  The GM provided an overview 
of this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Director Holmer moved to approve 
Resolution 17-05, Designation of Applicant's Agent Resolution for Non-State Agencies.  
Director Lipinski seconded.  Motion carried 4-0.   


 
V-B. (6:36 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Fish Flow Project DEIR and the Sonoma County 


Water Agency's Petition to Change Decision 1610.  The GM provided an overview of 
this item.  Board questions and discussion ensued.  Comments were made by District 
Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff.  


 
V-C. (7:25 p.m.)  Discussion/Action re Draft FY 2017-18 Budget.  The GM provided an 


overview of this item.  Board discussion ensued.  Comments were made by District 
Counsel Robin Donoghue.  Further discussion ensued.  Direction was given to staff.   


 


 
VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:28 p.m.) 


 
The General Manager reported on the following items: 
1. Water Production and Sales 
2. Leaks 
3. Guerneville rainfall 
4. River Lane Property Sale 
5. El Bonita Flooding Plan 
6. 2017 CIP 
7. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program 
8. In-House Construction Projects 
9. Gantt Chart 
10. Water Audit Seminar attended by the GM 
 
Discussion ensued. 
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS 
(8:30 p.m.) 


 
None. 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.) 
 
At 8:30 p.m. President Robb-Wilder announced the items for discussion in Closed Session.  At 
8:30 p.m. the Board went into Closed Session.  At 8:34 p.m. the meeting reconvened and the 
following action was taken on the Closed Session item listed below: Director Robb-Wilder moved 
to approve a Settlement Agreement and authorize the General Manager to sign.  Director Holmer 
seconded.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
 A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)  


 2







 3


  Claimant: Deborah Waller 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA (8:35 p.m.) 
 
1. Rate hearing 
2. District Unfunded Actuarial Liability (UAL) and PARS 
3. Award of Contract for CIP 2017 
4. Third Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted report 
 
 


ADJOURN 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 
 


Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 


Julie A. Kenny 
Clerk to the Board of Directors 


 
 
 
 
APPROVED:  
 


Gaylord Schaap: ______________ _ ______  


Sukey Robb-Wilder: ______________ _ ______  


Tim Lipinski:  ______________ _ ______  


Richard Holmer        


Pip Marquez de la Plata       





		I. CALL TO ORDER

		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATION OF CONFLICT (6:31 p.m.)

		III. CONSENT CALENDAR (6:31 p.m.)

		IV. PUBLIC COMMENT (6:32 p.m.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE (6:32 p.m.)*

		VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT (8:28 p.m.)

		VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS/COMMENTS

		(8:30 p.m.)

		VIII. CLOSED SESSION (8:30 p.m.)



		ADJOURN






 
 
 
 


www.sweetwatersprings.com 


 


BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
AGENDA 


May 4, 2017, Regular Meeting  
District Offices, 17081 Hwy. 116, Ste. B 


Guerneville, California 
6:30 p.m. 


 
 
NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: It is the policy of the Sweetwater Springs Water 
District to offer its public programs, services and meetings in a manner that is readily accessible 
to everyone, including those with disabilities.  Upon request made at least 48 hours in advance of 
the need for assistance, this Agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to 
persons with disabilities.  This notice is in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (28 
CFR, 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). 
 
Any person who has any questions concerning any agenda item may call the General Manager 
or Assistant Clerk of the Board to make inquiry concerning the nature of the item described on 
the agenda; copies of staff reports or other written documentation for each item of business are 
on file in the District Office and available for public inspection.  All items listed are for Board 
discussion and action except for public comment items.  In accordance with Section 5020.40 et 
seq. of the District Policies & Procedures, each speaker should limit their comments on any 
Agenda item to five (5) minutes or less.  A maximum of twenty (20) minutes of public comment is 
allowed for each subject matter on the Agenda, unless the Board President allows additional 
time. 
  
 


I. CALL TO ORDER (Est. time: 2 min.) 
 


A. Board members Present 
 
B. Board members Absent 


 
 C. Others in Attendance 
 
 


II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT 
(Est. time: 2 min.) 
 
 


III. CONSENT CALENDAR (Est. time: 5 min.) 
 (Note:  Items appearing on the Consent Calendar are deemed to be routine and 


non-controversial.  A Board member may request that any item be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and added as an “Administrative” agenda item for the 
purposes of discussing the item(s)). 


 
A. Approval of the Minutes of the April 6, 2017 Board Meeting 
 
B. Approval of Operations Warrants/Online payments/EFT payments 







 
C. Receipt of Item(s) of Correspondence.  Please note: Correspondence received 


regarding an item on the Administrative Agenda is not itemized here, but will be 
attached as back-up to that item in the Board packet and addressed with that 
item during the Board meeting 


 
 


IV. PUBLIC COMMENT: The District invites public participation regarding the affairs of 
the District.  This time is made available for members of the public to address the Board 
regarding matters which do not appear on the Agenda, but are related to business of the 
District.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, however, the Board of Directors may not conduct 
discussions or take action on items presented under public comment.  Board members may 
ask questions of a speaker for purposes of clarification. 


 
 
V. ADMINISTRATIVE 


 
A. Public Hearing: Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-04, Adopting Water Rates for 


FY 2016-17 and Analysis of protests received.  (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
B. Discussion/Action re Resolution 17-06 re Award of contract to the lowest 


responsive bidder for the CIP 2017.  (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
C. Discussion/Action re Addressing District Unfunded Actuarial Liability and the 


Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS) Rate Stabilization Program. (Est. 
time 20 min.)  


 
D. Discussion/Action re Draft Budget and Draft Budget Report (Est. time 20 min.) 
 
E. Discussion/Action re FY 2015-16 3rd Quarter Actual vs. Budgeted Operations 


and Capital Expenditures and County Balances (Est. time 10 min.) 
 
F. Discussion/Action re Approval of Resolution 17-07 Which Approves an 


Emergency Contract for Repair of a Water Line on Neeley Road (Est. time 10 
min.) 


 


VI. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   
 
 


VII. BOARD MEMBERS’ ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 


VIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 
 


IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA 


 
 


ADJOURN 


 2







 3


Sweetwater Springs Water District Mission and Goals 
 
The mission of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) is to provide its 
customers with quality water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective 
manner and to manage District resources for the benefit of the community and 
environment.  The District provides water distribution and maintenance services to five 
townships adjacent to the Russian River:  


 Guerneville 
 Rio Nido 
 Guernewood Park 
 Villa Grande 
 Monte Rio 
 


GOAL 1: IMPLEMENT SOUND FINANCIAL PRACTICES TO ENSURE EFFECTIVE 
UTILIZATION OF DISTRICT RESOURCES 
 
GOAL 2: PROVIDE RELIABLE AND HIGH QUALITY POTABLE WATER WITH 
FACILITIES THAT ARE PROPERLY CONSTRUCTED, MANAGED AND MAINTAINED 
TO ASSURE SYSTEM RELIABILITY 
 
GOAL 3:  HAVE UPDATED EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS PLANS FOR ALL 
REASONABLE, FORESEEABLE SITUATIONS 
 
GOAL 4: DEVELOP AND MAINTAIN A QUALITY WORKFORCE 
 
GOAL 5: PROVIDE EXCELLENT PUBLIC OUTREACH, INFORMATION AND 
EDUCATION 
 
GOAL 6: ENHANCE BOARD COMMUNICATIONS AND INFORMATION 





		II. CHANGES TO AGENDA and DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT (Est. time: 2 min.)

		V. ADMINISTRATIVE

		IX. ITEMS FOR NEXT AGENDA



		ADJOURN






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-A 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 4, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 WATER RATES 
 


 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  


A.  Hold a public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (FY18) Water 
Rates; 
B.  Approve Resolution 17-04 which establishes water rates for FY18, increasing 
the Base Rate, Water Usage Charge, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges by 3%. 
 


FISCAL IMPACT:  Adopts water rates that will increase water sales revenues by 
approximately $60,000 to fund District operations and capital programs in FY18.    
 
DISCUSSION: 
Sweetwater Springs Water District’s current financial condition is good with one 
exception – lack of sustainable funding for ongoing capital improvements.   The 
District has adequate revenues to fund operations, and debt repayment is covered 
mostly by the annual Flat Charge that appears on the property tax bill and by the 
Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  In recent years, after payment of all other 
expenses, the District has had approximately $250,000 in revenues from water rates 
to contribute towards capital expenses.  This amount is too small to fund the capital 
programs needed by the District to bring its infrastructure up to standard.  In the 
past the District has had funding support for its capital projects from the Russian 
River Redevelopment Committee (RRROC) and the Sonoma County Community 
Redevelopment Agency but that source of support has ended and capital projects are 
now funded by the District.   


In the coming fiscal year the District proposes to fund Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 
Capital Improvement Project with a loan and grant from the USDA.   This project is 
estimated to cost approximately $1.3 million, is needed to protect the water supply 
delivery to Rio Nido,  and sufficient reserves are not available to fund this project in 
the coming year and will not be available for several years without outside funding 
assistance.  That loan will need to be repaid and the District is still in the position of 
needing more funding for annual capital improvements.   


There’s no question that the District’s infrastructure is substandard.  Even with the 
capital programs of the past several years, the District averages approximately 150 
leaks per year (down from over 300 prior to the 2008 startup of capital 
improvements), 22% system losses, and requires many service interruptions to 







Approval of FY18 Water Rates  2  
May 4, 2017 


repair leaks.  Most of the facilities inherited by Sweetwater Springs Water District 
when it took over Citizen’s Utilities in 1992 were constructed in a haphazard manner 
and all of it needs replacing, except that replaced or constructed in the last twenty 
years.  The District’s 2016-24 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) is a “catch-up” 
CIP which aims to bring the District’s water system up to an acceptable standard, as 
measured by water quality, system leaks, system losses, and fire protection.  
Beyond the 2016-24 CIP, additional capital expenses will be needed to continue the 
catch up and to maintain the water system to an acceptable standard.     
To address this situation, in 2011 the Board directed Staff to investigate how to get 
to a funding level that will provide for a sustainable CIP.  Sustainable CIP funding is 
defined as at least $500,000 in net capital funding (net operating funds minus debt 
payments not covered by the capital debt reduction charge revenue and the annual 
assessment) that can be transferred to the Capital Program.       
 
The proposed 3% rate increase being considered would follow the current rate 
structure which is based on the 2007 Rate Study.  That study recommended annual 
increases of up to 4% to the Base Rate and Water Usage Charges, and increases to 
the Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) to fully cover debt costs.  In 2011 several 
alternatives were investigated based on a financial planning model that forecast 
District finances through FY 2020.  That investigation and accompanying Board 
meetings recommended a series of relatively small (3%) annual increases to the 
Base Rate,  Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC).  The 
analysis showed that nine years of 3% increases would bring Capital Program 
funding to the target sustainable level.  The recommended FY18 3% increase will be 
the 7th year of 3% increases to those charges.   
 
Table 1 shows the proposed Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charges for various customer classes and tiers.    Table 2 shows the effects of the 
proposed 3% rate increase on typical District water customers based on the various 
rate classes and median 90th percentile water use for those classes.  The table shows 
the effect on the FY18 water bills ($2.50 bimonthly for median single family 
residential).  
 
Observations: 
 


 The proposed water rates are rounded to the nearest 5 cents (this makes 
calculations and change making easier for staff).  That slightly increases the 
tier rates because last year the rounding slightly decreased the tier rates.    


 
 The proposed rate increases are not in response to drought water sales 


reductions and are not increases to specifically encourage reducing water use.  
The District's rate structure does include tiers that do encourage efficient use 
of water regardless of where we are in a drought cycle.  If water use 
continues to fall, the District will not achieve the desired increase in revenues, 
but we believe that now that this drought is over (but another will return 
some day), water will return to near pre-drought levels and the continued 
program of small annual increases will have the desired effect of building 
capital funding to the $500,000 target.  


 
 







Approval of FY18 Water Rates  3  
May 4, 2017 


Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2017-18 
Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 


    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   
  


Water Usage Rate 
  


$1.40  
  


$2.85  
  


$4.25  
  


$6.15    


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size   $ 61.50  8 20 80 >80 $11.25  


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; 
no meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units $95.33 12.4 31 124 >124 $17.44  


3 units $129.15 16.8 42 168 >168 $23.63  


4 units $162.98 21.2 53 212 >212 $29.81  


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $ 61.50  8 20 80 >80 $11.25  


1  $153.75  20 50 200 >200 $28.15  


1.5  $307.50  40 100 400 >400 $56.25  


2  $492.00  64 160 640 >640 $90.00  


 
 


 


Table 2.  3% Water Rate Increase Effect on Typical Water Users by Class  (100 cubic feet 
(Units), FY17-18 


  
Single Family 
Residential 


Multi-Family 
Residential, 2 Units Commercial 5/8 Meter 


Number of Accounts 3060 284 135 
  Median 90% Median 90% Median 90% 
Median Water Use 7 22 12 32 15 82
Median Bill Current  $80.05   $122.60  $125.63  $181.42  $100.65   $372.30 
Median Bill Proposed  $82.55   $126.65  $129.56  $187.38  $103.90   $385.45 
Bimonthly Difference  $ 2.50   $ 4.05  $ 3.93  $ 5.96  $ 3.25   $ 13.15 
% Increase 3.1% 3.3% 3.1% 3.3% 3.2% 3.5%


 







Approval of FY18 Water Rates  4  
May 4, 2017 


Proposition 218 Notice 
 
Notice for proposed water rate increases were mailed to all property owners by 
March 20, 2017. 3,175 notices were mailed.  The Notice provided for an increase to 
the Base Rate, Water Usage and Capital Debt Reduction Charges of up to 3% for FY 
2018 and included the proposed rate schedules and a protest form.   At the time of 
this agenda report writing (April 25, 2017), 156 protests had been received.  Below 
are specific comments received with the protest votes: 
 
Rates are already too high. 
 
You people should have a special rate for summer people only.  If you look at our 
water records it will show almost no usage.  Hou about doing something nice and 
right for summer people only.  Wouldn't that be a good thing for people all over!!  
PS, you should have sent an envelope also!!  Does this letter even get looked at and 
read!! 
 
I do not reside at the above address.  I am only there a few days a year. 
 
We are doing our part by decreasing consumption.  You are doing your part by 
increasing rates?!?  This arrangement is unbalanced as you expect us to sacrifice 
twice while you collect the profits.   
 
 
 
 
 







Resolution No. 17-04 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT ADOPTING WATER RATES FOR FISCAL YEAR 


2017-2018 
  


WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31007, the District Board of Directors is 
authorized to establish rates and charges sufficient to pay for operating expenses, 
provide for repairs and depreciation of works and pay for the principal and interest on 
debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 31025, the District shall fix and through the 
General Manager collect water rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the 2007 Rate Study conducted by Brelje and Race (“2007 Rate 
Study”) and other information provided to the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors 
has evaluated the anticipated revenues and expenditures necessary to operate the 
District and cover the costs of providing water services to customers of the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, in March of 2017 District staff sent formal notices of the public hearing on 
the proposed rate structure for Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (FY18) in accordance with the 
requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(a) of the California Constitution, and has 
included other rate information on the District’s website; and   
 
WHEREAS, the formal notices advised ratepayers and property owners of the new 
proposed rate structure and the process for submitting protests to said rate structure to 
the District, in accordance with the requirements of Article XIII-D, Section 6(a) of the 
California Constitution; and   
 
WHEREAS, the District Board of Directors conducted a public hearing on May 4, 2017 to 
hear public testimony on the proposed water rate structure for FY18, and heard all 
testimony regarding the proposed water rates and accepted all related comments and 
protests for FY18; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the public hearing the District Clerk tabulated the 
number of protests and reported that there was not a majority protest of the proposed 
water rate structure for FY18; and 
 
WHEREAS, based on the evidence and testimony provided at the time of the public 
hearing on this matter, the Board of Directors finds as follows: 
 


1.  The proposed rate increases set forth in Exhibit “A” follow the 
recommendations of the 2007 Rate Study that was commissioned by the District 
Board of Directors as a basis for restructuring water rates commencing in May 
2009. 
 


2.  Pursuant to the analysis and recommendations contained in the 2007 Rate 
Study, the revenues derived from the proposed water rates do not exceed the 
District’s actual cost of providing water service, are not used for any purpose 
other than that for which the charges were imposed and are not levied for 
general revenue purposes. 
 


3. Based on the 2007 Rate Study, the proposed water rates do not exceed the 
proportional cost of the service attributable to the properties receiving service, 







Resolution 17-04, FY 2017-2018 Water Rates 2 
May 4, 2017 
 


and the charges are imposed only on those properties actually receiving service 
or those for which service is immediately available. 
 
4.  Proper notice of the proposed rate structure and notice of a public hearing on 
the matter has been given to all ratepayers and owners of identified parcels 
within the District, in accordance with applicable law. 
 
5.  The proposed water rates, as described in Exhibit "A", attached, were not 
protested by a majority of the persons eligible to protest said rate structure.  


 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the Sweetwater 
Springs Water District adopts the following: 
 
Section 1. Base Rate, Water Usage, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges.  
Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2017, the bi-monthly Base Rate, Water 
Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charges shall be as shown in Table 1 of 
Exhibit “A”, attached. 


Section 2. Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of 
this Resolution is for any reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
the Resolution.  The District Board of Directors hereby declares that it would have 
passed this Resolution and each section, subsection, sentence, clause and phrase 
thereof irrespective of the fact that one or more sections, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases may be held invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution 
duly and regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 4, 
2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder 
      President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 







Resolution 17-04, FY 2017-2018 Water Rates 3 
May 4, 2017 
 
Exhibit A 


Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and 


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
 


Effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 2017 
 
The rates indicated below shall be effective on all bills issued on or after July 1, 
2017, and these fees, rates and charges shall supercede and replace those in 
Resolution 16-03.   
 
 
 
Table 1.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Water Rates for 2017-18 


Base Rate, Water Usage Rate, and Capital Debt Reduction Charge 
    Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4   


  


Water Usage Rate 
  


$1.40  
  


$2.85  
  


$4.25  
  


$6.15    


  
A.  Residential Single Family; no meter multiplier 


  Base Rate 


Tier 1  
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 2 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 3 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Tier 4 
Max 


Usage 
(Hcf) 


Capital Debt 
Reduction 


Charge 
(CDRC) 


Any meter 
size   $ 61.50  8 20 80 >80 $11.25 


B.  Residential Multiple Family – Multiple Unit Multiplier is 0.55 for every extra unit; 
no meter multiplier; charges for 2-4 units below. 


Any meter 
size Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


2 units $95.33 12.4 31 124 >124 $17.44 


3 units $129.15 16.8 42 168 >168 $23.63 


4 units $162.98 21.2 53 212 >212 $29.81 


C.  Commercial and Public – meter multiplier based on meter size; no multiple unit 
multiplier. 


Meter Size 
(in) Base Rate Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 Tier 4 CDRC 


0.625  $ 61.50  8 20 80 >80 $11.25 


1  $153.75  20 50 200 >200 $28.15 


1.5  $307.50  40 100 400 >400 $56.25 


2  $492.00  64 160 640 >640 $90.00 


 







Resolution 17-04, FY 2017-2018 Water Rates 4 
May 4, 2017 
 
 
USER CLASSIFICATIONS. For the purposes of assessing water 
charges provided for in this exhibit, user classifications shall be as 
follows: 
1. Residential Single Family: Applicable to all accounts serving one 
detached dwelling unit. 
2. Residential Multiple Family: Applicable to all accounts serving two or more 
living units, as defined by District Policy 3010.70. 
3. Commercial and Public: Applicable, without regard to meter size, to all 
accounts serving mercantile buildings, motels and other short term lodging 
establishments, office buildings, institutional buildings, parks, schools, churches, 
and other commercial and public agency establishments. 





		Item V-A - FY2017-2018 New Water Rates

		Item V-A.1 - Resolution 17-04 - Water Rates for FY18

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		Water Service Base Rate, Usage Charges and Capital Debt Reduction Charge








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-B   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 4, 2017  
 
Subject:  AWARD OF 2017 CIP PHASE 1 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT  
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-06 which conditionally awards the 
2017 CIP Phase 1 construction contract to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed 
amount of $729,305, waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of Piazza 
Construction, and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for a total 
amount not to exceed $66,300 with no single change order exceeding $25,000.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $663,005 plus up to $66,300 in possible change orders for a total 
amount of $729,305. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
Replacement of aging water main infrastructure is an important activity of the 
Sweetwater Springs Water District.  Toward that end the District has developed a 
multiyear capital improvement program that has prioritized the capital infrastructure 
that needs to be replaced or improved.  The District is currently working on the FY 2017 
CIP, Phase 1, which includes replacement of approximately 2200 ft of existing main and 17 
services on River Rd from Rio Nido to Old River Road near Outlet Drive.. 
 
This construction project was advertised on March 10, 2017, and 1 bid was received and 
opened on April 24, 2017 at 2 pm in accordance with bid instructions.  The project had 
an Engineer's Estimate of Probable Cost of $674,476.  The bidder and bid amounts are 
shown in Table 1 below.  After careful review and analysis of the bid by Piazza 
Construction (Piazza), staff is recommending awarding the bid to Piazza.  Piazza has 
done good work for the District in the past and the bid amount is below the Engineer's 
Estimate of Probably Cost.   
 
Table 1.  2017 Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1,  Bid 
Summary 
Bidder Name Bid Amount  
Piazza Construction $663,007 
 
Coastland Engineers checked the unit cost math and came up with a bid amount of 
$663,005 which reflects rounding errors in the bid tabulation worksheet.  Because of 
this, $663,005 will be the contract amount.   
 


  


The work authorized under this contract is scheduled to start within 10 days of notice to 
proceed and, according to the contract, will be completed within 90 working days of the 
1899027.1







AWARD OF 2017 CIP PHASE 1 CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT   2   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


 


notice to proceed.  The work involves repair, replacement and/or reconstruction of 
existing water main distribution lines, and the installation of water “services” and fire 
hydrants.  The work is in the same general location as existing facilities and will result 
in no expansion of system capacity.  The work is part of the District’s Capital 
Improvement Program and will provide important and necessary improvements to the 
District’s distribution system. 
 
In summary, the total award amount for the construction contract is $729,305 which is 
approximately $54,579 above the Engineer’s Estimate of probable cost of $674,479.  
The staff recommendation includes the bid amount of $663,005 by Piazza Construction, 
and authorization for the General Manager to approve up to $66,300 in total change 
order authority for work not anticipated by the contract with no single change order 
exceeding $25,000.  Construction management and inspection costs for the project are 
estimated at $110,000.  This puts the entire project cost at $839,305 including the total 
change order amount.      
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution 17-06 which conditionally awards the 2015 
CIP construction contract to Piazza Construction for a not to exceed amount of 
$729,305 and authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders for an amount 
not to exceed $66,300, with no single change order exceeding $25,000.   The 
conditions of the bid award include Piazza Construction’s timely delivering a duly 
executed Project contract and submitting all required documents, including properly 
executed bonds, certificates of insurance and endorsements, pursuant to the Project bid 
documents.   
 







Resolution No. 17-06 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SWEETWATER 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT AWARDING THE  CONTRACT FOR THE FY 2017 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, PHASE 1,  TO  PIAZZA CONSTRUCTION IN 


THE SUM OF $663,005, AND AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TOTAL 


CHANGE ORDER APPROVAL OF $66,300 AND SINGLE CHANGE ORDER 


APPROVAL UP TO $25,000 
 


 WHEREAS, District staff, including consulting engineering services employed by 
the District, prepared construction bid documents and advertised for construction of the 
FY 2017 Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1 (“Project”); and 
 


WHEREAS, District staff solicited bids for the Project on March 10, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 24, 2017, one bid was received and opened in accordance 


with the bid instructions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bid for the Project from Piazza Construction was in the amount 


of $663,007, and 
 
WHEREAS, Coastland Engineering, the engineer for this Project, found math 


errors in the bid tabulation sheet that changed the allowable bid amount to $663,005, 
and 


 
WHEREAS, Piazza Construction has the certifications required for potable water 


line installation and meets the requirements stated in the bidding instructions for 
experience and certification of employees with HDPE pipe and fittings installations, and 


 
WHEREAS, the Project involves the replacement or reconstruction of existing 


facilities and will result in negligible or no expansion of capacity, thus the Project is 
exempt from environmental review, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and Title 14, the California Code of Regulations (“CEQA Guidelines”), section 
15301(b) and 15302(c); and  
 
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the above-referenced bid amount, it is anticipated 
that the Project will have a certain amount of unanticipated construction issues during 
construction necessitating change orders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is of importance to the contractor and District alike that 
construction not be unduly delayed; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the General Manager is familiar with the project and will be 
monitoring construction. 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the District Board of Directors 
hereby: 
 


1. Finds the bid in the amount of $663,005 BY Piazza Construction to be the 
lowest responsive bid and further finds that Piazza Construction is a responsible bidder; 
and 







Resolution 17-06.  Construction Contract for FY 2017 CI, Phase 1, with Piazza 
Construction  2 
May 4, 2017 
 


 
3. Waives any and all non-conformance in the bid of Piazza Construction for 


the Project; and 
 
4. Approves the Project construction contract in the amount of $663,005; 


and 
  
5. Awards the contract for the 2017 Capital Improvement Project, Phase 1, to 


Piazza Construction in the amount of $663,005, the amount of the lowest responsive bid, 
conditioned on Piazza Construction timely executing the Project contract and submitting all 
required documents, including, but not limited to, executed bonds, certificates of insurance, 
and endorsements, in accordance with the Project bid documents; and 


 
6. Directs staff to issue a Notice of Award to Piazza Construction; and 
 
7. Authorizes and directs the General Manager to execute the Project contract 


on behalf of the District upon timely submission by Piazza Construction of the signed Project 
contract and all other required contract documents, in accordance with the contract bid 
instructions; and  


 
 8. Authorizes the General Manager to approve change orders on the Project 
without Board approval up to $25,000 per change order, with total change order 
approval not to exceed $66,300. 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 
SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 4, 
2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 





		Item V-B - Award of Contract 2017 CIP Phase 1

		Meeting Date : May 4, 2017 



		Item V-B.1 - Resolution 17-06 Award of Contract 2017 CIP Phase 1






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-C   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 4, 2017  
 
Subject:  ADDRESSING DISTRICT CALPERS UNFUNDED ACTUARIAL 
LIABILITY                                                                       
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive a presentation from staff on the District's CalPERS 
unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) and provide direction to staff.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Looks at alternatives for funding District UAL. 


 
DISCUSSION: 
 
At the April Board meeting staff made a presentation on the District's UAL, including 
possible impacts on future budgets, possible solutions, and remaining questions.  Staff 
stated that we were expecting to talk to CalPERS staff and that we would attempt to get 
answers to our questions.  The Board referred the issue to the Budget Subcommittee 
and staff promised an updated presentation for the May meeting.  Because of this issue, 
staff has recommended putting off adopting the FY 2017-2018 Budget until the June 
meeting.  
 
As we stated at the April meeting, the District's UAL through 06/30/2017 including 
accrued interest is $722,863.  This figure only includes investment returns and 
assumption changes through 6/30/2015, plus interest thru 6/30/2017.  Because we 
know investment returns were poor in FY 2015-16 (0.6%) and because we know 
PERS has changed their assumed rate of return from 7.5% to 7.0%, staff expects 
our UAL to increase by about $200,000 next year, plus an unknown amount in the 
succeeding years as the change to the assumed rate of return is put in place.  
Therefore, staff believes it is reasonable to assume our UAL is really about $1 
million, carrying a 7.5% interest rate.  
 
The District's long-range planning has reflected a desire to self-fund our capital 
projects, keep rate increases to a level consistent with recent history, while still 
having the flexibility to meet unexpected costs.  Staff has long been aware that 
CalPERS charges a high interest rate for unfunded liabilities.  Twice in the past the 
District has prepaid unfunded liabilities to avoid paying this interest.  It may be time 
to consider a third prepayment effort, but this time the size of the District's UAL 
means a prepayment would impact the District's long range financial planning for the 
next few years.   
 
At the April meeting staff presented the following options for addressing the UAL: 
 


  1899027.1







Approval of Emergency Contract for Neeley Road Water Line Repair   2   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


1. Do nothing.  Our payments for the current UL would follow the PERS 
amortization schedule which is a ramp-up/ramp down plan: early years have lower 
payments that do not even cover interest and payments increase each year.   Based 
on liabilities yet to be factored into this schedule as discussed above, expect 
payments to soon exceed scheduled amounts by about 20%.  In a few years, UAL 
payments will likely approach the $100,000 range -- a much larger expense than we 
have been using in past budget forecasting.  
 
2. Pre-pay the UAL over the next few years using existing cash reserves above 
District policy.  Because District cash reserves have been decreasing in recent years 
this option would likely require paring down planned capital improvements,  
decreasing other expenses, increasing rates to increase income, or some 
combination of the three.  It would also leave little room for unplanned expenses. 
 
3. Pre-pay the UAL in FY 2017-18 using cash reserves AND exercise the option to 
use USDA loan funds for all or part of CIP 2017.  This option would bring in the cash 
needed to make a significant payment on the UL while still proceeding with planned 
capital improvements and allowing some room for unplanned expenses.  Moreover, 
the USDA loan carries an interest rate of 2.25% compared to the 7.5% interest rate 
on the UL.  However, it would add to District debt payments for 40 years.   
 
Questions that staff and the Board had at the April meeting included: 
 


 Can we prepay UAL?  We have talked with CalPERS about this and we can prepay 
our UAL and the amounts we prepay are 100% credited to the District (no 
general funding of the retirement pool that the District is part of).    


 
The UAL has different "buckets", so for prepayment we need to designate our 
payments for the appropriate bucket(s) to reduce future interest costs.   


 
 2017 CIP Phase 1 construction costs?: the bid for this project came in under the 


Engineer's Estimate of Probable cost so no surprises here; completing this project 
does not negatively affect our approach.  


 
 Can PARS (Public Agencies Retirement Services) play a role in addressing this 


issue?: staff has looked into the type of services PARS provides, and contacted 
PARS about how they could provide useful services for the District.  We have 
asked PARS staff to make a presentation to the Board at the June meeting.  PARS 
is not essential to the immediate steps that the District can take, but we do see 
how they could play a role in the District's overall approach to managing the UAL.   


 
One example for the role of PARS is as a place to put District Policy Reserves with 
a better chance of getting a decent return on investment with minimal risk.  PARS 
has investment portfolios with a return on investment and risk similar to CalPERS.  
Funds in PARS can only be used to pay retirement-related expenses, but in 
addition to current year expenses, expenses up to 2 years in the past can be 
reimbursed from PARS funds.  If the District adopts a level payoff approach to the 
UAL and PARS was used as one of the repositories of District Reserves, up to 
approximately $200,000 could be accessed from those funds to pay for 


 







Approval of Emergency Contract for Neeley Road Water Line Repair   3   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


emergencies.  There are other scenarios about how PARS can be used for District 
reserves and retirement funding strategies.     
 


 USDA funding issues: We can use the USDA funding for Phases 2 and 3 of the 
2017 CIP but not for Phase 1.  The USDA funding would include the original 
funding amount - $2.59 million but since the total project cost would be reduced 
to approximately $1.8 million, unused funds would be returned to USDA.  The 
annual payments would remain at approximately $100,000 but the length of the 
loan would be reduced to something like 30 years.   


 
 Staff have looked into the possibility of short-term borrowing from the County  


against our assessment revenue (e.g., getting a September loan for December 
assessment revenue deposit by the County).  That is not possible, but it may be 
possible to get a short-term loan from WestAmerica Bank which holds some of 
the District's funds.   


 
Staff discussed the above issues at an April 20 meeting of the Budget Subcommittee 
who generally concurred with these observations. 
 
Moving Forward: 
 
One question we haven't answered: what are the cost differences between following the 
CalPERS ramped UAL payoff approach versus a level payoff approach that tries to 
minimize interest buildup on the UAL?  Staff have been unable to duplicate CalPERS's 
ramping approach to determine the interest versus principal elements of the currently 
scheduled annual payments for the current UAL.  We believe the savings to the District 
should be substantial but those savings won't accrue until several years when the 
CalPERS payments have ramped up to be higher than the level payments favored by 
District staff.   CalPERS staff have promised to send details of the ramping approach that 
will allow us to better understand the math of their approach but until we get those 
details we cannot give you a quantitative measure of the long-term savings of a level 
payment approach.   
 
What we do know:  
 


 The 2017 CIP bid came in near the Engineer's Estimate of Probable Cost so we 
don't need to rework the Budget to make that project happen, regardless of 
which approach we decide to take. 


 
 Because of the size of the UAL, reducing it will be a multi-year process.  It need 


not be a budget destroying expense in any one year if addressed on a yearly 
basis, even with an accelerated or level payment approach. 


 
  The UAL payment approach, whichever direction we choose to go, is a year-by-


year decision.  However, making prepayments on the UAL schedule cannot be 
fully recaptured; once we make a payment it is gone to CalPERS.  CalPERS is not 
an investment account.  PARS can help with an investment strategy; that 
discussion is for a future meeting.   


 


 







Approval of Emergency Contract for Neeley Road Water Line Repair   4   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


 Staff believes the CalPERS approach (ramping) to paying down the UAL does not 
even cover the interest in the early years, thus adding to our UAL.  For examples, 
interest on our UAL for this fiscal year (FY 2016-2017) is approximately $53,000, 
yet our annual payment for the UAL was $28,000.  Next year it will be 
approximately $70,000 yet our required payment is $37,000.  The difference in 
these payments is added to our UAL, plus interest.   


 
 We will have occasional one-time funding coming.  The River Lane parcel sale 


looks likely to happen sometime this summer or fall and will bring to the District 
approximately $60,000.   We could consider making a payment on the UAL this 
fiscal year in anticipation of that payment.  We can always reduce a future 
payment if it doesn't happen.   


 
 Using the USDA loan for Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 CIP gives the District more 


financial flexibility.  Table 1 shows the updated planning model with increased 
UAL payments and Phases 2 and 3 included for FY18.  The UAL payments affect 
the bottom line but do not restrict the District's need to complete capital projects.   


 
Recommendations for the FY 2017-2018 Budget: 
 
Staff is recommending adding a line item to the Budget to show payments for the UAL 
and that the FY18 Budget include a payment of $90,000.   
 
Staff recommends moving forward with the USDA loan for Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 
CIP (finishing the River Road/Old River Road Project) adding the loan revenue and 
estimated construction costs to the Budget.   
 
Adding these items to the Budget will get the District started in addressing its UAL and 
saving interest costs on the UAL, get these needed Capital projects completed next year, 
allow the District better budget freedom in the near term, and save the District money in 
the long term. 
 
 


 







Approval of Emergency Contract for Neeley Road Water Line Repair   5   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


 


3% Sales Flat


FY16 Actual FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24


1 REVENUE
2 OPERATING REVENUE Reduced WS Flat Flat….
3 Water Bill Revenue


4 Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 270,500 278,615 286,973 295,583 304,450 313,584 322,991 404,300          


5 Total Water Sales 2,245,959 2,042,600 2,103,878 2,206,092 2,272,275 2,340,444 2,410,657 2,482,977 2,557,466


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,100 2,382,493 2,493,066 2,567,858 2,644,894 2,724,240 2,805,968 2,961,766


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 118,915 119,600 112,702 114,655 116,647 118,679 120,751 122,865


8 Total Income 2,372,518 2,432,015 2,502,093 2,605,768 2,682,513 2,761,541 2,842,919 2,926,719 3,084,631


9 EXPENSES New GM


10 882,336 889,200 905,120 923,222 971,687 991,121 1,010,943 1,031,162 1,051,785


11 281,186 314,769 342,180 352,445 363,019 373,909 385,127 396,680 408,581


12 SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,203,969 1,247,300 1,275,668 1,334,706 1,365,030 1,396,070 1,427,842 1,460,366


13 Unfunded Liability Increase 90,000 77,158 73,046 68,934 68,934 68,934 68,934
14 SERVICES & SUPPLIES increase =


15 SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 513,860 515,900 521,059 526,270 531,532 536,848 542,216 547,638


16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,717,829 1,853,200 1,873,885 1,934,022 1,965,497 2,001,852 2,038,993 2,076,939


17 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $714,186 $648,893 $731,883 $748,491 $796,044 $841,067 $887,726 $1,007,692


18 FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 62,000 22,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000 60,000 20,000


19 Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


20 Tfers to CIRF 320,000         330,000       300,000      340,000        390,000        390,000          460,000          460,000         540,000          


21 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,500 618,615 666,973 725,583 734,450 813,584 822,991 984,300


22 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 11,686 8,278 4,910 2,909 1,594 7,484 4,735 3,392


23 Capital Budget
24 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
25 Net Operating Revenues** 404,066 341,686 308,278 344,910 392,909 391,594 467,484 464,735 543,392


26 Assessments 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481 775,481


27 Capital Debt Reduction Charge*** 261,565         270,500       278,615      286,973        295,583        304,450          313,584          322,991         404,300          


28 Capital Interest 8,367             10,000         10,000        10,000          10,000          10,000            10,000            10,000           10,000            


29 Transfers From CIRF/Reserves 772,515         590,000       580,000          130,000         


30 USDA Loan 1,613,000    get loan funds late FY18


31 TOTAL REVENUE 2,221,994 1,987,667 2,985,374 1,417,364 1,473,972 2,061,525 1,566,549 1,703,207 1,733,173


32 State Loan Done


33 Total Debt Payments 1,035,961      1,099,017    1,013,550   1,095,550     1,095,550     1,095,550       948,811          948,811         948,811          


34 CIP 2016 CIP 2017-1 CIP 2017-2-3 rpl GSF
35 Annual CIP 1,149,979 839,305 1,463,000 250,000        914,000          675,000         


36 In-House Construction Projects, etc. 36,042 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000


37 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 1,978,322 2,516,550 1,385,550 1,135,550 2,049,550 988,811 1,663,811 988,811


38 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 12 9,345 468,824 31,814 338,422 11,975 577,738 39,396 744,362


39 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)


40 Ending Funds ab District Policy (DP) 1,070,574      635,919       1,250,743   1,282,557     1,620,980     1,052,955       1,630,692       1,540,088      2,284,450       


41 Funds ab DP and Debt Payments 34,613           (463,098)      237,193      187,007        525,430        (42,595)           681,881          591,277         1,335,639       


42 NET CAPITAL FUNDING**** 413,518         298,650       358,824      321,814        378,422        385,975          617,738          624,396         784,362          


*  Starting values based on actual FY16 EOY


** =Transfer to CIRF plus net operating surplus


*** =Transfers from CDRC


**** =Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + CDRC + Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


EXPENSES


Total Benefits


Water Rate, CDRC 
Increase =


Table 1.  OPERATING AND CAPITAL 
BUDGET SUMMARY - 3% Increase, Phased 
2017 CIP, USDA Loan, Incrd UAL Pmt


Total Salary


 
 


 





		Meeting Date : May 4, 2017 






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-D   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 4, 2017  
 
SUBJECT:  DRAFT FY 2017-2018 BUDGET REPORT 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the draft Budget Report and discuss any 
outstanding issues regarding the Draft District FY 2017-2018 Budget, including the 
District’s proposed water rates based on a 3% increase, and provide direction to 
staff and the ad hoc Budget subcommittee.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Provides financial direction for FY 2017-2018. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 
The draft FY 2017-2018 (FY18) Budget was first presented at the March meeting.  
Because of staff's concern with addressing the District's CalPERS Unfunded Actuarial 
Liability (UAL) staff did not present the Budget Report, as is typically done at the 
April meeting, but rather presented information on the UAL and that discussion was 
carried forward to this meeting at the prior agenda item.  The result of these 
discussions are some changes to the draft Budget presented at the March meeting.  
In addition to the recommendations of the March draft Budget, staff is 
recommending: 
 


 Adding a line item for UAL payment and funding that at $90,000 for FY18. 
 


 Pursuing the USDA loan/bond for construction of Phases 2 and 3 of the 2017 
CIP (River Road/Old River Road Project).  The Bond revenue will offset 
construction costs and bond acquisition costs and provide some 
reimbursement for already spend design costs.  This adds $1,463,000 in 
Capital expenses to the Budget.     


 
The major budget issues, the proposed water rate increases, and the line item details 
not highlighted above discussed at the March meeting remain unchanged in the 
proposed FY18 Budget.    Highlights of the FY18 Budget include: 
 


 The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately 
$69,000.   


 Supplies and Services were scrutinized to reflect actual expected costs and 
have decreased approximately $12,000 compared to the FY17 Budgeted.      


 Expenditures for Tanks and Facilities include a liner for the Rio Nido Tank and 
road improvements for the Monte Rio Tanks. 


 We are not purchasing a truck this year.     







DRAFT FY 2017-2018 BUDGET REPORT  2 
May 4, 2017 
 


 


 Identification of CalPERS UAL payments; $90,000 for FY18. 
 The transfer to the Capital Improvement Reserve Fund (CIRF) is $320,000.   
 Revenue from the USDA loan/bond. 
 Completion of the 2017 CIP Phases 2 and 3 (River Road/Old River Road 


Project) 
 
Exhibit A is the draft FY18 Budget Report.  It includes a summary of the budget 
detail, the revenues and expense pie charts and discussion of notable budget items.    
This document plus information on the proposed 3% water rates increase will be on 
the District website.   


 







Exhibit A 


 


 
 
 


Sweetwater Springs 
Water District 


 
Annual Operating & Capital 


Improvement Budget 
 


2017-18 Fiscal Year 
(For the period July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2018) 


 
Board of Directors 


 
Sukey Robb-Wilder, President 


Pip Marquez de la Plata, Vice President 
Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator 


Gaylord Schaap  
Richard Holmer 


 


General Manager 
Steve Mack 







Sweetwater Springs Water District 
Annual Operating & Capital Improvement Budget 


2017-18 Fiscal Year 
Summary 


 
In Fiscal Year 2017-2018 (FY18) Sweetwater Springs Water District has budgeted 
operating expenses of $1.8 million and capital improvement expenses of $1.5 million. 
Figures 1 and 2 respectively show the distribution of these expenses and sources of 
funds to pay for these expenses.  Note that sources of funds include approximately $1.5 
million from a US Department of Agriculture (USDA) loan for capital improvements.    
 


Figure 1. FY 2018 Expenses
Total = $4.3 Million


Capital Improvements
35%


Salary and Benefits
30%


Debt Repayment
23%


Services and Supplies
12%


Figure 2.  FY18 Sources of Funds to Pay for Expenses
Total = $4.7 Million


Base Rate Charge
33%


Water Usage Charge
12%


CDRC
6%


Assessments
16%


USDA Bond
31%


Interest
0%


Rent, Other
2%







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


3 


Table 1. FY 2017-18 OPERATING BUDGET - DRAFT
 


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


1 4031 · Water Bill Revenue


2 4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Ch


Table 1 is a summary of the FY18 Budget which is described in detail in the following 
pages.  The FY18 Budget is similar in form and content to prior years’ budgets.  The 
FY18 Budget includes the seventh year of 3% increases for the Base Rate and Water 
Usage Charges and the fifth year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge which are designed to develop sustainable capital project funding.    


 


a 261,458 269,302            270,500             278,615          9,313           3% rate increase based on projected


3 4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,457,538 1,480,664        1,484,000         1,528,520       47,856         3% rate increase based on projected


4 526,963 563,372           558,600            575,358          11,986 Flat sales, 3% increase based on projected


5 4031.1. · Total Water Sales 1,984,502            2,044,036        2,042,600 2,103,878 59,842         


6 Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,338 2,313,100 2,382,493 69,155         


7 Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 118,915 119,600 4,754           


8 Total Income 2,372,518 2,428,184 2,432,015 2,502,093 73,909         


9 EXPENSES
10 OPERATING EXPENSES


11 SALARY & BENEFITS


12 882,336 932,100 889,200 905,120 (26,980)        


13 5920.1 CalPERS UAL Payment 90,000 Total UAL payment; $37,000 required


14 281,186 289,789 314,769 395,180 105,391       


15 Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,221,889 1,203,969 1,300,300 78,411         


16 Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 513,860 533,000 5,090           


17 Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,749,799 1,717,829 1,833,300 83,501         


18 OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $678,385 $714,186 $668,793 (9,592)$        


19 Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 61,333 22,000 (45,000)        


20 TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


21 8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375 270,375 278,615 8,240           


22 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 50,392 -                     -                   


23 8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 330,000 290,000 320,000          (10,000)        


24 8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000             15,000 15,000            -                   


25 8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000             25,000 25,000            -                   


26 Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 650,767 638,615 (1,760)          


27 SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 -28,990 2,086 8,178 37,168         
28
29 CAPITAL BUDGET
30 REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS
31 TOTAL REVENUE 1,413,597 1,409,302 1,370,500 2,871,615 1,462,313    


32 EXPENSES
33 TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,035,961 1,133,224 1,133,224 1,011,244 (121,980)      


34 Total Capital Expenses 1,186,021            874,000           874,000            1,488,000       614,000       


35 TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 2,007,224 2,007,224 2,499,244 492,020       


36 SURPLUS/DEFICIT (808,385)             (597,922)          (636,724)           372,371          970,293       Deficit will be made up from District Reserves


37 Net Capital Funding 436,702 222,088 214,362 380,549
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments 
+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments


38 FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
39 DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


40 Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,061               262,174           262,174            274,995          12,821         


41 425,102               436,956           436,956            458,325          
21,369         


42 258,777               258,777           258,777            252,811          
(5,966)          


43 Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                   


44    Total District Policy 1,188,940            1,207,906        1,207,907         1,236,131       28,225         


45 TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,259,513            1,648,674        1,690,142         2,232,430       
583,756       


For FY18 adding State Loan Reserve Payment 
(1000) 


46    Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,070,573            440,768           482,235            996,299          555,531       


47


48 DISTRICT FUNDS  


49 (247,764)          (825,642)    (833,764)           (334,700)         490,942          


50 425,102           425,102      436,956            458,325          33,223         


51 324,421           249,830      262,174            274,995          25,165         


52 510,829         508,777      508,777            502,811          
(5,966)          


53
93,525             


104,315      104,315            104,315          
-                   


54 180,850         198,850      198,850            213,850          15,000         


55 802,112         802,112      802,112            802,112          
-                   


56
-                   


64,284        64,284              64,284            
-                   


57 170,438               146,438 146,438         146,438          -                   


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY 
RESERVE (1100)


BUILDING (0200)
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS 
(0400)


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(0500)


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


Total Benefits


Total Salary







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


4 


2017-18 Fiscal Year (FY18) Budget 
 
The annual budget of the Sweetwater Springs Water District (SSWD) allows the 
District to accomplish its mission which is to provide its customers with quality 
water and service in an open, accountable, and cost-effective manner and to 
manage District resources for the benefit of the community and environment. The 
District achieves its mission of producing good quality water by pumping Russian River 
underflow from five wells – 3 located at the Guerneville El Bonita well site and 2 located 
at the Monte Rio well site.  That water is then treated in two separate treatment facilities 
at the Highlands site for Guerneville and at the Monte Rio well site for Monte Rio and 
environs and distributed through approximately 68 miles of distribution pipes and 3500 
service laterals of varying lengths, and stored in 26 tanks and reservoirs.   This system is 
managed and its operation administered by the District staff of 10 full time employees.  
The District has an aggressive capital improvement program aimed at maintaining and 
improving the capital infrastructure to industry standards to deliver high quality water, 
reduce system water losses, and maintain adequate system pressure and fireflow.  The 
annual budget identifies the revenues and expenses that accomplish these tasks. 
 
The FY18 Budget follows the format established in prior years and includes the 
seventh consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Base Rate and Water Usage 
Charges, and the fifth consecutive year of a 3% increase to the Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge. 
 
3% increase to the Base Rate, Water Usage Charges, and Capital Debt Reduction 
Charge:   A principal source of revenues for the FY18 Budget is water rates paid in 
bimonthly bills by District customers (Figure 2).  In 2011 District staff did a 
comprehensive multi-year analysis to show that with small annual increases in rates the 
District can develop sustainable funding for needed capital projects to maintain District 
facilities once the current catch up capital improvement program is completed.  The 
financial analysis showed that annual 3% increases over nine years will build into 
$500,000 available annually for capital projects.   This is the seventh year of planned 
annual 3% rate increases designed to achieve the sustainable capital improvement 
program.  More information on the District’s water rates and a water rate calculator can 
be found on the District’s website at www.sweetwatersprings.com.   
 
Net Capital Funding will be approximately $400,000.  Net Capital Funding is the term 
used for estimating the amount of funding developed in the Operating and Capital 
Improvement Budget for funding capital projects (line 37 in Table 1).  It is the sum of the 
operating budget surplus, annual assessments, CDRC, and capital interest minus total 
debt payments.  Net Capital Funding is budgeted to have a substantial increase because 
of decreased debt payments and reduced operations expenses, plus the effect of the 3% 
water rate increase.  We believe that Net Capital Funding should be near $500,000 for a 
sustainable capital improvement program for the District.  
 
The recent drought has  had a big impact on the budget planning in this and future 
years.  Water sales will continue to be depressed as water use habits recover from the 
drought restrictions required by the State.   Water use in FY 2017 was lower than State 
direction even though that direction has eased - approximately 83% of 2013 which is the 
State Board standard.  We expect that water use in the coming fiscal year will be at a 
similar level, and that a 3% rate increase will result in a 3% revenue increase in water 
sales.  We expect that once the drought restrictions are eased and customer use 



http://www.sweetwatersprings.com/





FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


5 


rebounds from those restrictions, water sales revenue will increase and the District will 
move toward reaching the $500,000 net capital funding goal.   
 
FY 2018 CIP (Table 2):  The FY18 Capital Budget has completion of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the 2017 CIP.   This will be funded by a U.S. Department of Agriculture loan of 
approximately S1.5 million.   The revised FY17 Budget includes Phase 1 of the River 
Road/Old River Project and we expect construction of this project to carryover into FY18.   
 
Addressing CalPERS retirement program Unfunded Accrued Liability (UAL):  The 
FY18 Budget has a new line item to identify and make accelerated payments for the 
CalPERS UAL.  The Board has determined that this item needs special attention as it 
will continue to impact District finances for many years.  The FY18 payment is $90,000. 
 
District Reserve Policy:   The District Reserve Policy was approved in September 
2009.   The Reserve Policy allows the District to gauge its financial health and 
adequately plan for its future, and allows ratepayers to follow this planning.  The District 
Reserve Policy has the following components: 


 
 Operating Budget Cash Reserve - 15% of the annual Operating Budget 


expenses to provide for prompt payment of operating expenses at the start of the 
fiscal year. 


 Operating Reserve – 25% of the Operating Budget for unanticipated expenses 
for economic downturn or other economic crisis, or for dealing with emergencies 
and disaster-related expenses. 


 Debt Repayment Reserve - 25% of all payments for principal and interest on all 
District loans to ensure funding is available to repay existing District debt. 


 Capital Reserve – 25% of the nominal Capital Budget of $1 million for similar 
issues with the capital program. 


 
The sum of all district funds is shown in the budget as Total Reserves End of Year 
(EOY).  This is the sum of the District discretionary funds, listed in the budget at the end 
of the year.  The difference between Total Reserves EOY and Total District Policy 
Reserves is Reserves Above District Policy.  The District goal is to keep this number 
positive.  The amount above the District Policy Reserve is the amount the District has for 
future capital projects.  The Reserves Above District Policy is a good measure of where 
we are in funding an ongoing capital program.  The FY18 Budget projects a  District 
Policy Reserve of $1,236,131 and $996,299 in Reserves Above Policy at the end of the 
fiscal year.  .   
 
 Other assumptions used to develop the Operating section of the Budget include: 


 
 Water Usage and Base Rate and Capital Debt Reduction Charges will be raised 


3%.    
 Water Usage revenues are based on flat water sales and on mid-year water 


sales projections, thus the FY18 water usage revenues are estimated to 
increase by 3% over the amount projected at the end of FY17.  The drought is 
over but it will likely take a while for sales to start increasing,  thus affecting 
Water Usage charge revenue. 


 Salaries and Retirement have been adjusted to reflect year 3 of the 2015 Union 
Memorandum of Understanding.  


 
 







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


6 


Line Item Highlights of the FY18 Budget: 
 
The FY18 Operating Budget provides for ongoing costs consistent with previous 
years’ expenditures, except where identified below. 
 
The operating budget encompasses the “expenditures related to the operation, 
maintenance and repair of water facilities”, as well as the billing, collections, accounting, 
fiscal management and other overall administration. 
 
Water Bill Revenue line items have been adjusted to reflect the 3% increases on 
projected sales revenue in the Base Rate, Capital Debt Reduction Charge (CDRC) and 
Water Usage Charges based on flat water sales revenue also includes a 3% increase.  
The 3% water rate increase will increase District revenues by approximately $70,000.  
Operating interest is continued at a relatively low amount to reflect continuing lower 
interest on deposited funds. 
 
Under Expenses, Salaries are budgeted to increase approximately 2%.  Benefits are 
budgeted to increase approximately $78,000 over the projected FY17 budget largely 
because of the increased payment for the UAL.  Salaries and Benefits are a major 
District expense – approximately 70% of the FY18 Operating Budget expenses. 
 
Total Supplies and Services are approximately $5,000 higher than the FY17 approved 
budget.   Maintenance/Repair – Facilities is a big cost item in Supplies and Services 
and is budgeted at a similar amount for FY18.   Governmental Fees and Professional 
Services are budgeted to increase by $1,000.  Electricity is a big expense item and is 
budgeted to be $5,000 more than FY17 and is the major expense difference in this 
category.   
 
Fixed Asset Expenditures are lower than FY16 because we are not purchasing a truck 
this year.  There are also substantial expenses for Tank/Facilities Sites to repair the 
road up to the Monte Rio tanks, and a tank liner at the Rio Nido Tank. 
 
The Operating Budget has a surplus of approximately $670,000 which is transferred as 
revenue to the Capital Improvement Budget as Capital Improvement Revenue Fund 
(CIRF) ($320,000) Building Fund ($15,000), In-House Construction Fund ($25,000), and 
CDRC revenue ($278,615).   
 
The FY18 Capital Budget major capital expense is completion of Phases 2 and 3 of 
the 2017 CIP described in Table 2.  The CIP will be funded by a USDA bond.  
 
Capital Interest revenue has been reduced to reflect expected continuing low interest 
rates and lower fund amounts in this coming year. 
 
Capital Debt is a major expense item – approximately $1.0 million and 21% of total 
District annual expenses in FY18.  District Capital Debt includes: 
 


 General Obligation (GO) Bonds – Approximately $1.6 million remain in the USDA 
bonds that were approved to purchase the District and make needed capital 
improvements, and refinanced in part in 2013 and 2014.  Annual payment - 
$64,284, remaining principal is $1,622,728. Paid off in 2054.     







FY 2017-18 Budget Report    
Sweetwater Springs Water District 


7 


 Cap One Bond – The District refinanced the first 20 years of the GO Bonds in 
September 2013.  Paid off in 2033, the FY18 payment is $566,508.    Remaining 
principal is $6,941,000. 


 State Loans - two loans for approximately $3 million which were approved in 
1995-96 for needed improvements.  The smaller loan was paid off in September 
2016; the second loan will be completed in 2022.  Annual payment - $146,438.  
Remaining principal is $800,765.70. 


 Private Placement Loan.  $3 million loan acquired in 2008 for needed capital 
improvements.  Paid off in 2028.  Annual payment - $234,012.  Remaining 
principal is $2,186,930.86.  The interest rate for this loan will reset in 2018 and 
will be reduced from 4.75% to 3.10%, reducing the annual payment by 
approximately $18,000 . 


 
District Reserves and Funds and Loan Balances show the District’s continuing 
healthy financial picture.   
 
As discussed above reserve balances are a good measure of the health of the District’s 
finances.  For FY18, District Policy Reserves are at $1,236,131 and Reserves Above 
District Policy at the end of the fiscal year are $996,299.    
 
The detailed FY18 Budget is included as Attachment A.   
 
 
 


Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District 2017-2018 Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  


Year Projects 
Estimated 


Cost 
2017    


  


Phase 1, Old River Road/River Road (GV) - replace approximately 
2200 ft of existing main and 17 services on River Rd from Rio Nido to Old 
River Road near Outlet Drive. $874,000


2018  


 


Phase 2 and 3, Old River Road/River Road (GV) - replace 
approximately 4,600 ft of existing main and 58 services on Old 
River Rd at Morningside east to the eastern section of Foothill 
Drive and include Orchard Rd and Foothill Drive. $1,488,000


 







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


DRAFT, Rev. 4-27-17


1


FY 2017-18 OPERATING BUDGET - DRAFT
 


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


REVENUE
OPERATING REVENUE


4031 · Water Bill Revenue


4031.1. · Capital Debt Reduction Cha 261,458 269,302            270,500             278,615          9,313           3% rate increase based on projected


4031.1. · Water Sales - Base Rate 1,457,538 1,480,664        1,484,000         1,528,520       47,856         3% rate increase based on projected


526,963 563,372           558,600            575,358          11,986 Flat sales, 3% increase based on projected


4031.1. · Total Water Sales 1,984,502            2,044,036        2,042,600 2,103,878 59,842         


Total OPERATING REVENUE 2,245,959 2,313,338 2,313,100 2,382,493 69,155         


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


4445 · Grant Proceeds 0 0 0 -                     -                   


1700 · Interest 9,142 7,500               9,000                8,000              500              


3600 · Construction New Services 6,712 7,000               5,575                7,000              -                   


3601 · Construction Service Upgrades 100 2,000               3,240                2,000              -                   


4032 · Rent
99,219 94,346             98,000               98,600            4,254           


Crystal $1361/mo = $16,322
AT&T $6856/mo = $82,272


4040 · Miscellaneous Income
8,891 1,500               600                    1,500              -                   


USBank CC refunds
So. Cty Credit 


4117 · SCWA Reimbursement 2,495 2,500               2,500                2,500              -                   CUWCC dues reimbursed thru 2019.


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 126,559 114,846 118,915 119,600 4,754           


Total Income 2,372,518 2,428,184 2,432,015 2,502,093 73,909         


EXPENSES
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS


Salary


5910 · Wages 783,622 823,000 786,000 801,720          (21,280)        Union MOU includes retirement pay provisions


5912 · Overtime 28,379 34,400 33,200 33,200            (1,200)          


5916 · On-Call Pay 33,428 37,700 33,000 33,100            (4,600)          


5918 · Extra help - Contract 36,907 37,000 37,000 37,100            100              


882,336 932,100 889,200 905,120 (26,980)        


Benefits


5500 · Flex Spending -296 0 0 0 -                   


5920 · Retirement net EE share
85,337 84,460 85,000 65,100 (19,360)        


employees pay employee share; ER Rate 
8.418%; does not include UAL


5920.1 CalPERS UAL Payment 90,000 Total UAL payment; $37,000 required


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer 15,548 16,329 15,000 15,300 (1,029)          


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLA 140,619 146,000 162,000 170,100          24,100         


5931 · Retiree health 8,140 7,000 7,644 7,680 680              Includes contribution to CERBT


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 31,838 36,000 45,125 47,000 11,000         Year 3 of high rates due to injuries


281,186 289,789 314,769 395,180 105,391       


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 1,163,522 1,221,889 1,203,969 1,300,300 78,411         


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications  


6040-I · Internet service 1,778 1,850               1,950                 2,350              500              
Comcast -$86.13/month: $1034
GotoMyPC $27.90/mo = $334.80
Sonic.net $47.90/mo (A) = $575


6040-C · Cell Phones 4,417 4,050               4,050                4,050              -                   


Verizon $65/mo: $780
Misc parts/holders: $200
Cell phone reimburse $255/mo - $3060


6040-P · Pagers & Radios 485 620                  620                    620                 -                   
American Messaging $35/mo: $420
Misc. parts/batteries: $200


Total Benefits


Total Salary


4031.1. · Water Sales - Usage 
Charges + Other


4/28/2017







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


DRAFT, Rev. 4-27-17


2


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


6040-T · Telephones 14,670 17,000             17,000              17,000            -                   
Ans. Service: $2000
Phones: $1,200/mo: $14,400


21,350 23,520 23,620 24,020 500              


Insurances


6101 · Liability & Auto Ins. 32,175  32,200             31,000              33,000            800              


32,175 32,200 31,000 33,000 800              


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance
14,784 18,000             12,000              12,500            (5,500)          


6151 · Office Maintenance 5,717 6,200               7,200                 6,400              200              


Alarm System - $130/qtr.=$520
PacketFusion maint. contract - $1500/year
The Compute Wizard - $175/mo = $2100/year 
Copy mach. maint - 1400/yr
Call One - $1000/yr, but $200 for FY 2017-18
Landscaping - $300/yr
Misc / Other - $250


20,501 24,200 19,200 18,900 (5,300)          


Maint/Repair - Facilities -                   


6085 · Janitorial Services 7,397 8,500               8,500                8,800              300              


Altech (office Janitorial): $212/mo  = $2544
United Site Svces (port-o-lets): $260/mo = 
$3120
Sunrise Garbage $1600
Sewer - GVTP ($1200)


6,801 5,000               6,500                5,000              -                   


12,749 50,000             62,000              50,000            -                   Not accounting for" In- House Const." off-set


53,319 45,000             36,000              45,000            -                   estimating (1) well rehab


6143 · Generator Maintenance 1,814 2,000               1,000                3,200              1,200           This will be a bi-annual maitenance year.


82,080 110,500 114,000 112,000 1,500           


Miscellaneous Expenses  


6280 · Memberships 10,076 10,400             10,400              10,800            400              


USA $165
AWWA $420
CSDA $6100
CUWCC $2600 (reimbursed by SCWA)
MR Chamber -$50
RR Chamber - $150
Cal Rural $1100
WCWW $200


6303 · Claims 0 1,500               1,000                 1,500              -                   


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,772 18,400             18,400              19,000            600              


Elections costs: $1,000
Notice of Determination $230
Parcel List $265
LAFCO $6,700
Hazmat $1200
Operator license fees $400
System fees $10,500


25,848 30,300 29,800 31,300 1,000           


Office Expense -                   


6410 · Postage 11,403  16,000             18,200              16,000            -                   


Billing (2000 pieces @ $.485 X 12 months) = 
$11,650
Prop 218 mailing:  4000 X .485 = $1,940
1 extra mailing: 3600 X .485 = $1,750
Other mail 


Total Communications


Total Insurances


6100 · SCADA System


6180 · Distribution System 
Repairs


Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well 
Repairs


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities


Total Miscellaneous Expenses


4/28/2017







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


DRAFT, Rev. 4-27-17


3


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


6430 · Printing Expense 4,666 7,500               7,000                 7,500              -                   


Window Envelopes $1100
Return Envelopes $950
Water Bills + Autopay $1500
Doorhangers $400
Turn Off Notices $600
Letterhead $250
Misc. Inserts $250
Prop 218 notice: $700
Checkblanks $200
Tagbooks $700


6461 · Office Supplies 5,734 4,000               4,000                4,100              100              


Supplies $3145
Plants/Landscaping $150
Christmas Tree $80
Christmas party $400
Business lunches $75
Paper products/coffee $250


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notic 759 1,100               1,100                1,100              -                   


Press Democrat $320
Legal Notices $400
Sonoma West $70
Safety Meeting Outlines $85


6890 · Computers/Software 598 3,000               3,000                3,000              -                   


Antivirus softsware $120
Cloud software $70
Misc $400
Quickbooks upgrade $300
3 workstations - $2000 (KG/LK/CMH)


6579 · Furniture
487 500                  -                       500                 -                   


23,647 32,100 33,300 32,200            100              


Operating Supplies


6300 · Chemicals 10,370 18,500             18,500 18,500            -                   


6880 · Tools and Equipment
3,750 6,000               3,400 5,000              (1,000)          Pipe locator: $1,000., Cut-off saw $900.


6881 · Safety Equipment 90 1,000               1,200 1,200              200              


14,210 25,500 23,100 24,700 (800)             


Professional Services


6083 · Laundry Service 2,207 3,000               3,500                3,000              -                   Mission $90/2 weeks = $2340


6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 13,392 15,000             14,000              14,000            (1,000)          


6570 · Consultant Fees 16,900 18,000             18,000              18,000            -                   


IEDA $12,500
Open Spatial (Mapping): $4,200
Computer Wizard (non-maintenance work) 
$800
Misc. (John Thompson?) -$500 


6610 · Legal 12,053 20,000             15,000              20,000            -                   


6630 · Audit/Accounting 30,566 34,500             35,000               35,500            1,000           


ADP $55/2 weeks = $1300
W-2s = $80
Authorize.net $500
Auditor $8,500
Harbortouch $18,000
E-check fees = $1680
West America fees $230/mo = $2760
1099 = $175
County Accounting Fees = $700
GASB 68 prep = $1,300


75,118 90,500 85,500 90,500 -                   


Rents & Leases


6820 · Equipment 967 2,000               1,000                3,300              1,300           
Postage machine $1300
Action rents: $2000


6840 · Building & Warehouse
28,045 28,800             28,800              29,790            990              5% rent increase: $2,482.50/mo = $29,790


29,012 30,800 29,800 33,090 2,290           


Transportation & Travel  


7120 · Seminars & related travel 702 2,650               2,500                 2,650              -                   
JK - $250
LK and CMH - $400 
Field: $1500, GM - $500


7201 · Vehicle Gas 19,113 23,000             21,000               23,000            -                   


Total Professional Services


Total Rents & Leases


Total Operating Supplies


Total Office Expense


4/28/2017







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


DRAFT, Rev. 4-27-17


4


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


7300 · Travel Reimbursements 5,606 6,400               6,400                6,400              -                   
SM - $50/mo = $600 (A)
KG $400/mo = $4800 (F)
CMH/LK/JK $80/mo = $960 (A)


25,421 32,050 29,900 32,050 -                   


Uniforms


6021.1 · Boots 991 1,500               1,500                1,500              -                   $205 X 7 = $1450


6021.3 · T-shirts 351 1,500               400                    1,500              -                   


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240                  240                   240                 -                   2 jackets


1,342 3,240 2,140 3,240 -                   


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 87,613 90,000             90,000 95,000            5,000            


7321 · Propane 2,415 3,000               2,500 3,000              -                   


90,028 93,000 92,500 98,000 5,000           


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 440,732 527,910 513,860 533,000 5,090           


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,604,254 1,749,799 1,717,829 1,833,300 83,501         


OPERATING SURPLUS/DEFICIT $768,264 $678,385 $714,186 $668,793 (9,592)$        


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8517 · Field/Office equipment 3,327 -                      0  -                     


8573 · Vehicles 30,366 45,000             39,333 (45,000)        no new vehicle


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 28,940 22,000             22,000 22,000            -                   
Rio Nido Tank liner - $12,000                              
Monte Rio Tanks access road rehab -$10,000


8511.6 · Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 -                     -                   


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 62,633 67,000 61,333 22,000 (45,000)        


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 261,565 270,375 270,375 278,615 8,240           


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF - PY Surplus 0 0 50,392 -                     -                   


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 320,000 330,000 290,000 340,000          10,000         


8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000             15,000 15,000            -                   


8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000             25,000 25,000            -                   


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 621,565 640,375 650,767 658,615 18,240         


SURPLUS/DEFICIT 84,066 -28,990 2,086 -11,822 17,168         


CAPITAL BUDGET
REVENUE/SOURCES OF FUNDS


Annual Assessment - New Services 27,949 27,000             27,000              27,000            -                   


Annual Assessment (County) 722,085 710,000           710,000            710,000          -                   


Prior Year Assessment 25,447 40,000             40,000              40,000            -                   


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 261,565 269,302           270,500            278,615          9,313           


Interest 8,367 8,000               8,000                8,000              -                   


USDA 2016 Bond 1,463,000       Not doing the bond


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 343,184 330,000           290,000            340,000          10,000         


Transfers to In-House Constr. from Operatio 25,000 25,000             25,000              25,000            -                   


TOTAL REVENUE 1,413,597 1,409,302 1,370,500 2,891,615 1,482,313    


EXPENSES
DEBT PAYMENTS


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 64,284 64,284             64,284              64,284            -                   USDA refinance resolution
Cap One Revenue Bond 567,492 566,508           566,508            566,508          -                   


State Loan Payments 170,172 252,068           252,068            146,438          (105,630)      paid off smaller State Loan in 2016
Private Placement Loan 234,013 250,364           250,364            234,014          (16,350)        


TOTAL DEBT PAYMENTS 1,035,961 1,133,224 1,133,224 1,011,244 (121,980)      


1,463,000                                            
2016 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 124,532 -                  


2016 CIP Construction 902,052
-                  Construct Award amount plus encrhmnt permit


2017 CIP Design and Construction Mgmt 123,395 92,000             92,000              
Design of 2017 CIP in FY16, CM in FY17 and 
will be carried over into FY18


2017 CIP Construction 0
732,000           


732,000            
Contract award in FY17, most construction in 
FY18


2018 CIP Non-Construction Expenses 0
215,000          


Phases 2 and 3 of 2017 CIP Bond Exp 
($50,000) and CM and Inspection


Total Transportation & Travel


Total Uniforms


Total Utilities


4/28/2017







SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT
DRAFT OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET, 2017-2018


DRAFT, Rev. 4-27-17


5


FY 15-16
FINAL (CASH)*  


 FY16-17 
BUDGET


FY 16-17
Projected  


 FY 17-18
BUDGET 


 Difference 
FY18-FY17 
Budgets FY 2017-18


2018 CIP Construction 0
1,248,000       


Phases 2 and 3 of 2017 CIP


El Bonita Well Valut Improvements  25,000             25,000                


In-House Construction Projects 36,042 25,000             25,000              25,000            -                   Increase in this vs 6180 in Operating Budget??


Mapping Project  -                  -                   


Total Capital Expenses 1,186,021            874,000           874,000            1,488,000       614,000       


TOTAL EXPENSES 2,221,982 2,007,224 2,007,224 2,499,244 492,020       


End of FY17 Accrual Expenses


Total Expenses = Accrual Expenses 
because no FY18 Obligation in FY17


SURPLUS/DEFICIT (808,385)             (597,922)         (636,724)          392,371          990,293       Deficit will be made up from District Reserves


Net Capital Funding 436,702 222,088 214,362 380,549
Net Operating Revenues + Assessments 
+CDRC+Cap Interest-Total Debt Payments


FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (EOY)
DISTRICT  RESERVES AND FUND AND LOAN BALANCES 


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 255,061               262,174           262,174            274,995          12,821         


425,102               436,956           436,956            458,325          
21,369         


258,777               258,777           258,777            252,811          
(5,966)          


Capital Reserve 250,000               250,000           250,000            250,000          -                   


   Total District Policy 1,188,940            1,207,906        1,207,907         1,236,131       28,225         


TOTAL Reserves EOY 2,259,513            1,648,674        1,690,142         2,232,430       
583,756       


 For FY18 adding State Loan Reserve Payment 
(1000) 


   Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,070,573            440,768           482,235            996,299          555,531       


ACCRUAL TOTAL Reserves EOY No FY18 Obligations


   Accrual Reserves Above (below) Policy Ditto


DISTRICT FUNDS  


(247,764)          (825,642)     (833,764)          (334,700)        490,942          


425,102           425,102      436,956            458,325          33,223         


324,421           249,830      262,174            274,995          25,165         


510,829         508,777      508,777            502,811          
(5,966)          


93,525             
104,315      104,315            104,315          


-                   


180,850         198,850      198,850            213,850          15,000         


802,112         802,112      802,112            802,112          
-                   


-                  
64,284        64,284              64,284            


-                   


170,438               146,438 146,438        146,438          -                   


171,370           
146,739      146,739        146,739          


-                   


Operating Budget Reserve (10%+15% 
of Operating Exp)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt 
pmt)


CIRF (7106-0600)


OPERATING RESERVE ( 0300)


OPERATIONS (0100)


IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION 
(0500)


STATE LOANS RESERVES 
(0800&1000)


CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY 
RESERVE (1100)


BUILDING (0200)
CAP ONE AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200)
FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS 
(0400)


STATE LOANS (0700,0900)


4/28/2017





		Item V-D - FY 2017-2018 Draft Budget Discussion

		Meeting Date: May 4, 2017 



		Item V-D.1 - FY 2017-2018 Draft Budget Report

		Board of Directors

		Tim Lipinski, Financial Coordinator

		General Manager



		Steve Mack

		Sweetwater Springs Water District

		2017-18 Fiscal Year (FY18) Budget





		Item V-D.2 - FY 2017-18 Operating Budget Detail - DRAFT REV for UAL

		Combined








SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-E 
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


 
Meeting Date: May 4, 2017 
  
SUBJECT: ACTUAL VS. BUDGETED (OPERATIONS AND CAPITAL) REPORT THRU MARCH 
31, 2017 (75%) 
 


 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 


(Discussion item only.) 
 


FISCAL IMPACT: 
(None.) 


 
 
DISCUSSION: 


 
This report presents the 3rd quarter actual revenues and expenses, revised to 
reflect Mid-Year Budget revisions.  This comprises 75% of the year by time and 
so we compare the revenues and expenses to that standard. 
 
Operating Budget: 
 
3Q Revenue is greater than 75% of budgeted amount.  
 
Water Sales, the largest revenue line item, remains ahead of budgeted amounts 
at 76.97%.  In terms of the units of water sold this year’s sales remain slow 
historically, but are slightly (3%) higher than last year's water sales.   
 
Overall revenues are also slightly ahead of budgeted amounts, at 77.47%.  Of 
note, interest rates earned at the County are rising.  In the third quarter, we 
earned 1.1% (annualized) on our County funds. 
 
 
3Q Expenditures are right at 75% of budgeted amount.  
 
3Q expenditures are at 75.44%.   
 
Winter weather resulted in some overtime pay, as well as $1,448 in 
emergency-related robocalls (6151 - Office Maintenance).  In addition, we 
spent $5,911.73 on two unbudgeted 6" valves (6180 Distribution System 
Repairs), $15,199.14 on testing of the MR 4 Well, and an unbudgeted 







Actual vs, Budgeted thru March 31, 2017 2 
May 4, 2017 


$17,103 for vaulting at the El Bonita Well (6235 Treatment System/Well 
Repairs).  The extra expenses will leave all three of these line items 
underbudgeted for the year. 
 
For more detail on all the budget line items, please refer to the attached Actual 
vs. Budgeted breakdown provided with your packet. 
 
Capital Budget: 
 
The 3rd Quarter Actual vs Budgeted again demonstrates how things can change 
during a fiscal year.  The mid-year budget revision changed the CIP to reflect 
what we are actually doing and that contract is on the agenda for award at the  
May meeting.    
 
Also included in the budget revision were paying off the smaller State loan and 
refinancing the Private Placement Loan (actually an interest rate reset) which 
incurred costs for Brandis Tallman.   
 
We have received the first installment of annual assessment revenue.  The 
CIRF and In-House Construction transfers have happened.  The  Capital Debt 
Reduction Charge (CDRC) transfer won’t be happening until later in the fiscal 
year.        
 
FUNDS AT THE COUNTY 
 
Table 3. Fund and Loan Balances show a comparison of the budgeted and 3rd 
Quarter balances.  Also attached is the County Fund Balances for the 3rd Quarter.   
 
Table 3 is typical for the 3rd quarter of the fiscal year - all debt payments have 
been made and the first installment of the annual assessment has come in.  CIRF 
is much larger than budgeted but we have payments for the construction project 
coming.     
 
The County Balances Table shows that funds above District Policy are 
$853,169.94 at the end of the 3rd quarter.   Table 3 shows actual Policy Reserves 
below the budgeted amount, however that is a reflection of two funds which 
correspond to County Funds (0100 and 0300).  The District is meeting the Policy 
Reserve amount. 
 







FY 2016-17 
Actual


2016-17 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Ordinary Income/Expense
Income


OPERATING REVENUE
4031 · Water Sales


4031.10· Base Rate 1,108,055 1,480,664 -372,609 74.84%
4031.11· Current Charges 470,921 563,372 -92,451 83.59%
4031.12· Capital Debt Reduction Charge 201,607 269,302 -67,695 74.86%


Total 4031 · Water Sales 1,780,584 2,313,338 -532,754 76.97% This is a cash water sales figure.   


Total OPERATING REVENUE 1,780,584 2,313,338 -532,754 76.97%  


NON-OPERATING REVENUE


1700 · Interest 7,448 7,500 -52 99.3%  


3600 · Construction New Services 5,128 7,000 -1,872 73.26%
3601 · Construction - Service Upgrades 400 2,000 -1,600 20.0%


4032 · Rent 85,430 94,346 -8,916 90.55%  


4227 · SCWA reimbursement 0 2,500 -2,500 0.0%


4040 · Miscellaneous Income 2,005 1,500 505 133.65%
  


Total NON-OPERATING REVENUE 100,410 114,846 -14,436 87.43%


Total Income 1,880,994 2,428,184 -547,190 77.47%


Expense
OPERATING EXPENSES


SALARY & BENEFITS
Salary


5910 · Wages 572,757 823,000 -250,243 69.59%  


5912 · Overtime 22,992 34,400 -11,408 66.84%  


5916 · On-Call Pay 24,105 37,700 -13,595 63.94%


5918 · Extra help - Contract 27,851 37,000 -9,149 75.27%  
Total Salary 647,705 932,100 -284,395 69.49%


Benefits
5500 · Flex Spending (Flex spending monies p 1,714 0 1,714 100.0%


5920 · Retirement net employee share 67,312 84,460 -17,148 79.7%  


5922 · Payroll Taxes - Employer Paid 12,280 14,355 -2,075 85.54%


5930 · Health/Dental/Vision/AFLAC Ins. 119,656 146,000 -26,344 81.96%  


5931 · Retiree Health 6,492 7,000 -508 92.74%
In the 2Q, our annual deposit into our CERBT 
account was made in the sum of $3,090.


5940 · Workers Comp Insurance 45,125 36,000 9,125 125.35%
In the 1Q, workers' compensation insurance was 
paid for the year. This line item was underbudgeted.  


Total Benefits 252,578 287,815 -35,237 87.76%


Total SALARY & BENEFITS 900,283 1,219,915 -319,632 73.8%


SERVICES & SUPPLIES


Communications
6040-I · Internet service 1,457 1,850 -393 78.77%
6040-C · Cell Phones 2,897 4,050 -1,153 71.52%
6040-P · Pagers & Radios 343 620 -277 55.3%
6040-T · Telephones 11,785 17,000 -5,215 69.32%  


Total Communications 16,482 23,520 -7,038 70.08%


Insurances


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


 Page 1 of 4







FY 2016-17 
Actual


2016-17 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6101 · Gen. Liability 30,745 32,200 -1,455 95.48% (In the 1Q, paid for the year. )


6102 · Auto/Equipment 0 0.0%
Total Insurances 30,745 32,200 -1,455 95.48%


Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles


6140 · Vehicle Maintenance 5,694 18,000 -12,306 31.64%  


6151 · Office Maintenance 6,564 6,200 364 105.87%


In the 2Q the District paid for the annual phone 
maintenance contract for the in the sum of $1500.


In the 3Q, an unbudged $1,448 was spend for 
emergency weather-related callouts, leaving this line 
item underbudgeted for the year.


*
Total Maint/Rep - Office & Vehicles 12,258 24,200 -11,942 50.65%


Maint/Repair - Facilities
6085 · Janitorial Services 6,119 8,500 -2,381 71.99%


6100 · SCADA system 4,747 5,000 -253 94.95%
In the 2Q, the District spent an unbudgeted $3,577 to 
transfer maintenance of the SCADA system to a new 
vendor.  


6180 · Distribution System Repairs 54,762 50,000 4,762 109.53%


In the 1Q, pump repairs were needed at the Harrison 
Booster ($5893.55) and Crespo Tank ($2281.35)


In the 3Q, $5,911.73 was spent on 6" valves (2).


This line item was underbudgeted.


*


6235 · Treatment Sys/Well Repairs 48,278 45,000 3,278 107.29%
In the 3Q, three unbudgeted repairs -- MR Well 4 
test ($15,199.14), 10" GVs (2) ($3,698.16), and 
vaulting for the El Bonita well ($17,103.50) left this 
line item undbudgeted for the year.


*
6143 · Generator Maintenance 382 2,000 -1,618 19.11%


Total Maint/Repair - Facilities 114,289 110,500 3,789 103.43%


Miscellaneous Expenses


6280 · Memberships 9,302 10,400 -1,098 89.44%  


6303 · Claims 0 1,500 -1,500 0.0%  


6593 · Governmental Fees 15,438 18,400 -2,962 83.9%
Total Miscellaneous Expenses 24,740 30,300 -5,560 81.65%


Office Expense


6410 · Postage 16,722 16,000 722 104.51%  


6430 · Printing Expense 4,898 7,500 -2,602 65.3%  


6461 · Office Supplies 3,671 4,000 -329 91.76%  


6800 · Subscriptions/Legal Notices 804 1,100 -296 73.1%


6890 · Computers/Software 810 3,000 -2,190 27.0%  


6579 · Furniture 0 500 -500 0.0%
Total Office Expense 26,905 32,100 -5,195 83.82%


Operating Supplies  


6300 · Chemicals 16,179 18,500 -2,321 87.45%  


6880 · Tools and Equipment 1,854 6,000 -4,146 30.9%  


6881 · Safety Equipment 1,054 1,000 54 105.43%
Total Operating Supplies 19,087 25,500 -6,413 74.85%


Professional Services
6083 · Laundry Service 2,111 3,000 -889 70.38%  
6514 · Lab/Testing Fees 7,506 15,000 -7,494 50.04%  


6570 · Consultant Fees 17,200 18,000 -800 95.56%  


6610 · Legal 5,368 20,000 -14,632 26.84%  


 Page 2 of 4







FY 2016-17 
Actual


2016-17 
Budget


$ Over 
Budget for 


the Year
% of Budget Notes (Underlined notes reflect 


changes since last report)
*=Ch
ged


Sweetwater Springs Water District
FY 2016-17 Operating Budget Variances as of March 31 (75%)


Note: Document is cumulative.  Changes to text made from previous reports are *'d in the "Changed" column and underlined.


6630 · Audit/Accounting 28,305 34,500 -6,195 82.04%  


Total Professional Services 60,490 90,500 -30,010 66.84%


Rents & Leases
6820 · Equipment 1,276 2,000 -724 63.78%  


6840 · Building & Warehouse 23,620 28,800 -5,180 82.01% 1Q Bldg. rent paid thru October.


Total Rents & Leases 24,895 30,800 -5,905 80.83%


Transportation & Travel
7120 · Seminars & related travel 1,066 2,650 -1,584 40.24%
7201 · Vehicle Gas 13,600 23,000 -9,400 59.13%
7300 · Travel Reimbursements 4,225 6,400 -2,175 66.02%


Total Transportation & Travel 18,892 32,050 -13,158 58.95%


Uniforms
6021.1 · Boots 855 1,500 -645 57.0%


6021.3 · T-shirts 1,529 1,500 29 101.9%  


6021.4 · Jackets 0 240 -240 0.0%
Total Uniforms 2,384 3,240 -856 73.57%


Utilities


7320 · Electricity 75,516 90,000 -14,484 83.91%  


7321 · Propane 2,172 3,000 -828 72.42%  


Total Utilities 77,689 93,000 -15,311 83.54%


Total SERVICES & SUPPLIES 428,855 527,910 -99,055 81.24%


Total OPERATING EXPENSES 1,329,138 1,747,825 -418,687 76.05%


FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES


8511.1 · Tank/Facilities Sites 694 22,000 -21,306 3.15%   
8511.2 - Leasehold Improvements 0 0 0 0.0%  


8517 · Field/office equipment 0 0 0 0.0%  


8573 · Vehicles 39,333 45,000 -5,667 87.41%
  


Total FIXED ASSET EXPENDITURES 40,027 67,000 -26,973 59.74%


Total Expense 1,369,165 1,814,825 -445,660 75.44%


Net Ordinary Income 511,828 613,359 -101,531 83.45%


Other Income/Expense
Other Expense


TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS


8620.7 · Tfers to CIRF for CDR Revenue 0 270,375 -270,375 0.0%  


8620.3 · Tfers to CIRF 330,000 330,000 0 100.0%  


8620.10 · Tfers to CIRF PY Surplus Income 50,392 50,392 100.0%
8620.5 · Tfers to Building Fund 15,000 15,000 0 100.0%
8620.2 · Tfers to In-House Constr 25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


Total TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS
420,392 640,375 -219,983 65.65%


  


 Page 3 of 4







Water Sales


Base Current CDR


Oct $120,214.89 $79,799.60 $21,865.58


Nov $105,494.33 $44,382.70 $19,278.19


Dec $119,855.42 $51,917.20 $21,799.79


TOTAL $345,564.64 $176,099.50 $62,943.56


July $105,543.52 $62,759.60
August $119,815.28 $71,367.00
Sept $105,351.55 $60,696.35


$330,710.35 $194,822.95


$676,274.99 $370,922.45







1  Table 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District


FY 2016-17 Capital Program Budget Variances as of March 31, 2017 (75%)


FY 16-17
ACTUAL 


(3Q)
FY 2016-17 


Rev


$ Over 
Budget for 


Year
% of 


Budget Comments


REVENUE


Annual Assessment - New Services 5,902 27,000 -21,098 21.9%


Annual Assessment (County) 395,440 710,000 -314,560 55.7%


Prior Year Assessment 23,808 40,000 -16,192 59.5%


Capital Debt Reduction Charge 0 269,302 -269,302 0.0%


Interest 7,921 8,000 -79 99.0%


50,392 0 50,392 0.0%


New item- highlights additional FY 2015-16 
amount beyond what was budgeted that could 
be transferred to CIRF based on surplus income
and County fund levels.  This transfer occured at
the beginning of FY2016-17 after adjustments 
were made to County funds to reflect FY 2016-
17 policy reserve requirements.


Transfers to CIRF from Operations 330,000 330,000 0 100.0%


25,000 25,000 0 100.0%


0 600,000 -600,000 0.0%


TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 838,464 2,009,302 -1,170,838 41.7%


EXPENSES   


Gen. Obligation Bonds Payments 64,284 64,284 0 100.0%


Cap One Revenue Bond 565,098 566,508 -1,410 99.8%


Total Bond Payments 629,382 630,792 -1,410 99.8%


State Loan Payments 256,835 252,068 4,767 101.9% Includes paying off smaller State Loan ($81,768)


Private Placement Loan 250,363 250,364 -1 100.0% INCLUDES $16,350 TO BRANDIS TALLMAN


Total Debt Payments 1,136,580 1,133,224 3,356 100.3% Sum of all debt payments


2017 CIP 36,338 824,000 -787,662 4.4%
Design Expenses, Contract award at May 
Meeting


In-House Construction Projects 8,608 25,000 -16,392 34.4%


TOTAL CAPITAL EXPENSES 1,181,527 1,982,224 -800,697 59.6%


SURPLUS/DEFICIT -343,063  27,078 -370,141 -1266.9%


Net Capital Funding -171,775 348,077 -519,852 -49.3%


=Net Operating Revenues + Assessments + 
Capital Interest - Total Debt Payments


Funds from Reserves


Transfers to In-House Constr. from 
Operations


Transfers to CIRF from Operations for 
prior year surplus







 


County Balances FY 2016-17 and Reserves Above Policy
 


$25,428.46 $324,420.80 $180,850.00 $425,102.00 $0.00 $93,525.43 ($247,763.69) $ 23,699.25 $24,750.00 $146,738.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $802,111.50 $2,430,883.03


NAME


CERBT
Operations + 


15% Cash 
Policy Reserve


Bldg Fund
Operating 


Policy Reserve 
(25%)**


Federal Loan 
(GO Bonds)


In-house 
Construction


Capital 
Improvements
(incl. $350,000 


"loan" from Oper 
Res.)


State Loan 
#58330


State Loan 
#58830


Final Pymt


State Loan 
58340


State Loan 
58340 


Final Pymt


Capital and Debt 
Policy Reserve


Cap One Bonds 
and Citizens 


Bank Loan Debt


2015-16 FYE 
Policy 


Reserve: 
$1,207,907 


Fund  76751 76752 76753 76754 76755 76756 76757 76758 76759 76760 76761 76762


Dep't  


7106


0100
7106


0200
7106


0300
7106


0400
7106


0500
7106


0600
7106


0700
7106


0800
7106


0900
7106


1000
7106


1100
7106


1200


FP1-Jul $25,428.46 $374,420.80 $180,850.00 $425,102.00 $0.00 $93,273.21 ($264,769.81) $23,699.25 $24,750.00 $146,738.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $685,104.89 $2,346,618.08 $967,341.22


FP2-Aug $25,428.46 $312,174.80 $180,850.00 $436,956.00 $0.00 $92,914.15 ($230,239.42) $23,699.25 $24,750.00 $146,738.88 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,884,459.41 $505,182.55


FP3-Sept $26,338.88 $412,174.80 $180,850.00 $436,956.00 $0.00 $87,356.60 ($291,578.36) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,795,804.66 $441,277.80


FP4-Oct $25,517.70 $414,462.98 $180,850.00 $436,956.00 $0.00 $87,356.60 ($289,502.51) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,800,168.69 $445,641.83


FP5-Nov $25,517.70 $534,462.98 $180,850.00 $436,956.00 $0.00 $87,356.60 ($289,502.51) $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $1,920,168.69 $565,641.83


FP6-Dec $29,244.72 $534,462.98 $180,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $85,938.11 $460,106.12 $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $239,166.89 $2,318,358.83 $963,831.97


FP7-Jan $29,244.72 $637,116.91 $180,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $85,938.11 $462,163.46 $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $122,160.29 $2,306,063.50 $951,536.64


FP8-Feb $29,244.72 $302,116.91 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $109,665.44 $777,538.44 $0.00 $0.00 $73,429.87 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $3,000.29 $2,206,005.81 $851,478.95


FP9-Mar $30,537.75 $377,116.91 $195,850.00 $86,956.00 $0.00 $109,665.44 $777,538.44 $0.00 $0.00 $120.86 $146,619.86 $510,829.00 $3,000.29 $2,207,696.80 $853,169.94


FP10-Apr $0.00


FP11-May $0.00


FP12-Jun $0.00


FP 13 
(FINAL)


$0.00


Beginning balances:
(Note:  Warrants requested in FP 12 for last fiscal year are not subtracted from Cash until FP 1 of the next year.  They are instead recorded as "Vendors Payable")


Reserves Above 
Policy


** $350,000 loaned from Operating Policy Reserve (0300) to Capital Improvements (0600) in December 2016.


 







FY 16-17


Actual 3Q


Operating Budget Cash Reserve 377,117       262,174     114,943.16  
corresponds to 
Operations (0100)


Operating Reserve (25% of Operating Exp) 86,956           436,956     (350,000.25) 
corresponds to 
Operating Reserve 0300)


Debt Repayment Reserve (25% of Debt pmt) 258,777       258,777     -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
1100)


Capital Reserve 250,000 250,000     -               


Included in Capital and 
Debt Policy Reserve 
(1100)


Total District Policy 972,849 1,207,907 (235,057)    
TOTAL Reserves 2,192,697 2,594,683 (401,986)    


Reserves Above (below) Policy 1,334,791 1,415,968 -81,177


Difference between Total 
and Policy Reserves


DISTRICT FUNDS
CIRF (7106-0600) 777,538     (37,859)        815,397
OPERATIONS (0100) 377,117     263,943       113,174
OPERATING RESERVE (0300) 86,956      425,102       -338,146
CAPITAL AND DEBT POLICY RESERVE 
(1100) 510,829       508,777       2,053
IN HOUSE CONSTRUCTION (0500) 109,665     104,315       5,350
BUILDING (0200) 180,850     195,850       -15,000
CAP ONE BOND AND CITIZENS BANK 
LOAN (1200) 3,000          800,522       -797,522  1st payment made 


FEDERAL LOANS AND BONDS (0400) -                64,284         -64,284  payment made this year 


STATE LOANS (0700, 0900) 121           170,172       -170,051  paid off smaller loan 


STATE LOANS RESERVES (0800,1000) 146,620       146,620       0


Restricted to last payment for 
State Loans; not included in 
Total Reserves; paid off 
smaller State Loan


2,192,697    2,495,106  -302,409


DISTRICT RESERVES AND FUND BALANCES (2Q)
District Policy Reserves


Total Funds Available 


Table 3.  FUND AND LOAN BALANCES (3Q) 16-17 Budget
Difference 


Actual-FY17 Comments





		Item V-E Actual v Budgeted - 3Q 2016-17

		Item V-E.1 - Budget variances as of 03-31-2017 (75%)

		Sheet1

		Water Sales breakdown



		Item V-E.2 - Capital Budget variances for 16-17  (75%)

		Table 2. FY16Q3



		Item V-E.3 - County Acctg Funds FY 16-17

		County Acctg Indices FY 99-00

		Policy reserve parameters

		CERBT Contributions

		Est CERBT bal



		Item V-E.4 - Fund and Loan Balances as of 3-31-2017 (75%)

		Table 3








 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. V-F   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date : May 4, 2017  
 
Subject: APPROVAL OF RESOLUTION 17-07 WHICH APPROVES AN 


EMERGENCY CONTRACT FOR REPAIR OF A DAMAGED WATER LINE ON 


NEELEY ROAD AND DECLARES THE EMERGENCY SITUATION OVER 
    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Resolution 17-07 which approves an emergency 
contract with Piazza Construction for repair of a section of damaged water line on 
Neeley Road in Guerneville, CA for a not to exceed cost of $25,000 and terminates the 
emergency condition.  


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  not more than $25,000. 


 
DISCUSSION: 


 
As of the date of writing this report, we are working on an emergency repair project 
on Neeley Road, close to where it meets with the western-most intersection with 
Guernewood Road.  On Wednesday, April 19, 2017, we had a leak repair on Neeley 
Road with road paving cracking indicating that the road was failing (the river side of 
the road embankment is very steep and approximately 15-20 feet deep and the 
water main is close to the edge of the embankment).  On Thursday, April 20, 
evening we had another main break approximately 20 feet from the first. District 
field staff were up all night repairing this leak.  On Friday I inspected the damaged 
area along with field staff and determined that the chance of continued failure in this 
area is high and that another failure could be more catastrophic - this entire section 
of Neeley Road could fail causing loss of water supply to the Vacation Beach area.  
 
It's not clear what is causing the failure - did our leak cause the road to buckle, did 
the winter rains cause this road section to move (this is an ongoing issue with 
multiple asphalt overlays in this section), a combination of both, or something else?  
The water line in this area is 6" Transite (asbestos concrete pipe) which does not flex 
well (or cracks easily with ground movement).  
 
Because of the multiple failures and the chance of big issues if the failures continue, 
we have asked Piazza Construction to do an emergency repair.  This repair will 
replace approximately 225 feet of Transite with High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) 
and two services.   We expect the repair to cost approximately $20,000 but have put 
in an not to exceed cost of $25,000 in the accompanying Resolution 17-07 so that .  
 







Emergency Contract for Repair of Neeley Road   2   
May 4, 2017                                                                 


 


We expect this repair to be completed by next Thursday (May 4). After completion of 
the emergency project, this emergency situation should be over.   
 
 







Resolution No. 17-07 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 


SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT APPROVING AN 


EMERGENCY CONTRACT WITH PIAZZA CONSTRUCTION IN 


AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $25,000 AND DECLARING 


THE EMERGENCY CONDITION TERMINATED 
 
 


 WHEREAS, on April 19. 2017, District staff found and fixed a leak on Neeley 
Road near the westernmost intersection with Guerneville Road; and 
 


WHEREAS, at that time staff noticed road asphalt buckling and crackling at the 
leak site and many historical applications of asphalt overlays along that stretch of 
roadway; and 


 
WHEREAS, on April 20, 2017, another leak was found and fixed approximately 


20 feet from the prior leak, which repair work was done through the night and completed 
the morning of April 21, 2017; and 


 
WHEREAS, during the examination of these leaks and the condition of the 


roadway, staff became concerned with the possibility and likelihood of more leaks, with 
resulting potential loss of water, loss of water supply to the Vacation Beach area,  
roadway embankment failure, damage to surrounding property, and other  deleterious 
results; and 


 
WHEREAS, the stretch of Neeley Road that appeared  to be affected and in 


danger is approximately 225 feet in length and beyond the capability of staff to repair 
without contractual services; and 


 
WHEREAS, Piazza Construction was available to inspect the problem area 


immediately and start repair work quickly, and had the proper equipment to effect the 
needed repair, and 


 
WHEREAS,  Piazza Construction immediately commenced repairs; and 
 
WHEREAS, District staff expects Piazza Construction to be finished with the 


repairs and construction of a  new water line section, in order for the District  to be 
delivering water by May 4, 2017; and 


 
WHEREAS,  the cost estimate of the emergency repairs is approximately 


$25,000, and District funds are available for this purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS, with completion of the repairs, staff has determined that the 


emergency conditions have been resolved; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Sweetwater Springs District Board of Directors hereby finds as 


follows:  
 
A. Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 20168, the public 


interest and necessity demanded the immediate commencement of the above-described 







Approval of Emergency Repair Contract for Neeley Road 2 
May 4, 2017 


work on Neeley Road and the expenditure of public money for such work to safeguard 
life, health and property; 
 
 B. Pursuant to California Public Contract Code Section 22050, substantial 
evidence as set forth in the staff report prepared concerning this resolution, and as set 
forth in this resolution, establishes that the emergency conditions at the Neeley Road 
site would not permit delay resulting from competitive solicitation for bids for the work 
staff ordered done at such properties as described above, and such work was necessary 
to respond to the emergency conditions at the Neeley Road site;   
 
 C. Competitive bidding of the emergency work ordered at the Neeley Road 
site would have jeopardized the public health, safety and welfare, and risk further 
damage to public and private property, and result in the public incurring additional 
expense, including, but not limited to, additional expense due to delay and potential 
property loss, and therefore competitive bidding of such work would not have produced 
an advantage for the public;  
 
 D. The emergency work ordered at the Neeley Road site is statutorily 
exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to California Public Resources Code Section 15269, subparagraphs (b) and 
(c), because it involves specific actions necessary to prevent or mitigate an emergency; 
 
 E. There is no further need to continue the emergency action. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE the District Board of Directors does hereby resolve as 
follows: 
 
 1. The above recitals are true and correct and hereby declared to be 
findings of the Board of Directors of Sweetwater Springs Water District. 
 
 2. Award of contract for the emergency work ordered at the Neeley Road 
site described above is exempt from California Public Contract Code competitive bidding 
requirements pursuant to California Public Contract Code Sections 20168 and 22050 
and the established common-law doctrine articulated in the case of Graydon v. 
Pasadena Redevelopment Agency (1980) 104 Cal.App. 3d 631. 
 
 3. An  emergency contract for the water line repairs with Piazza 
Construction in an amount not to exceed $25,000 is hereby approved. 
 
 4. The General Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute on 
behalf of the District this contract for the performance of the emergency work described 
above at contract prices substantially in accordance with the staff cost estimates and the 
vendor quote specified above, and on terms and conditions that are appropriate for such 
projects of County water districts, and any such contracts executed prior to the adoption 
of this resolution are hereby ratified. 
 
 5. The emergency action for repair of Neeley Road is hereby declared 
terminated. 
 
 6. This resolution shall become effective immediately.   
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of a Resolution duly and 
regularly adopted and passed by the Board of Directors of the SWEETWATER 







Resolution 17-07. Neeley Road Emergency Contract  3 
May 4, 2017 


SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT, Sonoma County, California, at a meeting held on May 4, 
2017, by the following vote. 
 


Director    Aye  No  
 
Sukey Robb-Wilder       
Tim Lipinski        
Richard Holmer       
Gaylord Schaap       
Pip Marquez de la Plata      


 
 
 
 
 
 
   


 
 
 


           
      Sukey Robb-Wilder   


President of the Board of Directors 
      
Attest: Julie A. Kenny  
Clerk of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2808448.1  
 





		Item V-F - Emergency Contract for Neeley Road

		Meeting Date : May 4, 2017 



		Item V-F.1 - Resolution 17-07 Neeley Road Emergency Contract






SWEETWATER SPRINGS WATER DISTRICT 
 


 
TO:  Board of Directors AGENDA NO. VI   
 
FROM: Steve Mack, General Manager 
 


Meeting Date: May 4, 2017  
 
Subject:  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT    
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive report from the General Manager. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
DISCUSSION: 
 


1. Water Production and Sales:  Water sales in March were 16,805 units (38.6 AF, 
Guerneville cycle) and production was 56.9 AF.  Compared to one year ago, sales this 
month were lower and production was higher (40.7 AF and 47.9 AF, respectively).  The 
water lost percentage is up some again (24.6); we're dealing with some leaks and 
proactively looking.   2017 March production was similar to March 2013, the State Board 
standard (57.1 AF).  GPCD for March was 65.1.  Figure 1 shows sales, production and % 
difference since 2008.     


 
2. Leaks:  In March we had 9 total leaks and spent 160 man-hours on them.   Those are the 


more leaks and man-hours compared to the prior month and fewer leaks and more man-
hours compared to March one year ago (12 and 42).    Figure 2 shows service and main 
leaks separately with a total breaks line as well.  Even though we're having more leaks (and 
water losses) recently, the long-term trend is still downwards - surface leaks tend to show 
more when the rain and resulting runoff slows down, and we typically have high leak 
numbers in the spring months.          


   
3. Guerneville Rainfall: We are finally nearing the end of the rainy season and we've gone 


above the previous high since I've been here (and, as I have stated earlier, I think the 
Guerneville numbers are approximately 4" low for January).   Figure 3 shows monthly 
rainfall compared to averages and prior years.          


 
4. River Lane Property Sale:  The property was surveyed by Russian River Recreation and 


Parks District and shows the riverside property line near the current water surface, and 
adequate access to the parcel from River Lane.  RRR&PD is meeting with the Open Space 
District to move the sale requirements along.     


 
5. 2017 CIP: This item is on the Administrative Agenda for award of contract. 
  
6. Toilet Rebate/Direct Install Program:  There was one toilet rebate reported for April. 
 
7. In-House Construction Projects: There was one in-house project reported for April - 


removed and replaced pump shed on Canyon 4 in Rio Nido (122 man-hours). 
 







General Manager’s Report  Page 2 of 4 
May 4, 2017 
 
8.  Gantt Chart:   In May the Gantt Chart shows construction starting on the 2017 CIP and 


approval of the Budget.  We awarding the contract at the May meeting; construction will 
likely start in June or July.  Budget approval has been put off until the June meeting. 


 
 


 


Figure 1.  Water Production and Sales 12 Month Moving Averages
Sweetwater Springs Water District Since September 2008 


0


200


400


600


800


1,000


1,200


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


S
al


es
 a


n
d


 P
ro


d
u


ct
io


n
 (


A
F


)


5.0%


10.0%


15.0%


20.0%


25.0%


30.0%


35.0%


D
if


fe
re


n
ce


 (
%


)


Sales


Production


%Difference







General Manager’s Report  Page 3 of 4 
May 4, 2017 
 


Figure 2.  Sweetwater Springs Water District Main and Service Pipeline 
Breaks 


Moving Annual Average Since September 2008


-


50


100


150


200


250


300


350


400


Sep-
08


Mar-
09


Sep-
09


Mar-
10


Sep-
10


Mar-
11


Sep-
11


Mar-
12


Sep-
12


Mar-
13


Sep-
13


Mar-
14


Sep-
14


Mar-
15


Sep-
15


Mar-
16


Sep-
16


Mar-
17


B
re


ak
s


 
 
 
 Main Breaks


 Service Breaks


 
 Total Leaks


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


Figure 3.  Guerneville Cumulative Monthly Rainfall


0


10


20


30


40


50


60


70


Octo
be


r


Nov
em


be
r


Dec
em


be
r


Ja
nu


ar
y


Feb
ru


ar
y


M
ar


ch
Apr


il
M


ay
Ju


ne Ju
ly


Aug
us


t


Sep
te


m
be


r


P
re


ci
p


it
at


io
n


 (
in


)


GV 2009


Guerneville Avg


GV 2011


Dryest (1977)


2016


07-15 Avg


2017


-







 
Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16 Jul-16 Aug-16 Sep-16 Oct-16 Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 FY18+


Ongoing Activity
Board Action
Other Milestone
Current Month


Projected 
Completion
/
Milestone 
Date


Crystal Communications Lease
2014-15 Budget Preparation


        Capital Improvement Program 
Board Discussion 
        Staff Budget Preparation Begins
        Ad Hoc Budget Committee Reviews 
Draft Budget
        Draft Budget to Board for 
Discussion/Action
        Approve Budget


Capital Projects
        Update/Review District CIP


        2017 CIP Design


        2017 CIP Award of Contract


        2017 CIP Construction Starts


Urban Water Management Plan Oct-16


Water Rights SCWA Protest
Emergency Response Plan Review
Building Lease


        Lease Renewal August-17
Policies and Procedures


        Other Policy
        Overall Review


Board and General Manager Annual Review


Figure 4.  Sweetwater Springs WD Calendar Gantt Chart


By Activity
Action Item/Milestone


 
 





		Meeting Date: May 4, 2017 



